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Mission Statement

As it has grown hand in hand with the development of Japan’s economy, Kanamoto has devoted its full resources
to both infrastructure construction and to restoration efforts in the wake of natural disasters. Following the
unprecedented disasters caused by the Great East Japan Earthquake and Kumamoto Earthquake, we have
considered it our mission to utilize our past experience to the fullest extent possible as we work together for Japan’s
restoration and revival. Furthermore, with infrastructure in urgent need of repair or replacement in every region of
Japan, Kanamoto will concentrate its full capabilities and work to ensure Japan's safety and peace of mind.

We also have one more mission. That is to maintain our growth. We will continue to pursue overseas development,

and seek our own possibilities. As it ardently pushes ahead with each measure, Kanamoto will focus on achieving
further growth.
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Forward-Looking Statements

Statements included as part of the Kanamoto Co., Ltd. plans and strategies described in this report, other than statements of actual past

facts, are descriptions of the Company’s outlook concerning future operating results-and are forecasts based on information currently
available. These descriptions of the future outlook contain known risks and unidentified risks; as well as other uncertainty factors, and the
actual management performance and operating results of Kanamoto Co., Ltd. may vary substantially.-from the descriptions provided herein.

@ The Consolidated Financial Statements presented in this report were prepared according'to current generally accepted accounting
principles in Japan.

@ Throughout this report, amounts of less than ¥1 million are truncated except in the financial statements, where figures of less than ¥1
million are rounded.
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Message from the President
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lam pleased to report on the operating activities of Kanamoto Co, Ltd.
during the Business Period ended October 31, 2017 and discuss
our policies for the future.

During the past year, Japan’s economy maintained its second longest
phase of sustained growth of the postwar period, surpassing even the
“lzanagi Boom” from 1965 through 1970, and continued to exhibit
considerable strengths, including a clear recovery in both domestic
and overseas demand. The Nikkei Stock Average also reached a new
high, 25 years after the bursting of Japan’s economic bubble.
Nevertheless, given the sustained economic results of Abenomics
there is a risk as well of an economic slowdown being triggered by the
impending phase of higher interest rates in monetary policy, or by the
consumption tax hike planned for 2019, and in the months ahead we
will need to maintain a vigilant stance regarding the future outlook.

In the domestic construction industry that is the main customer for
the Kanamoto Group's core business of construction equipment
rentals, rental demand was supported by robust public works,
construction in the Tokyo metropolitan area related to the Tokyo
Olympics, large-scale private sector redevelopment projects, and
transportation infrastructure construction for the Linear Chuo
Shinkansen, and remained vigorous even as Great East Japan
Earthquake restoration works entered the final phase.

On the other hand, topics such as the widening regional gap in
construction works volume, frequent disaster occurrences, the shift in
works from new construction to refurbishment, and labor shortages
accompanying the shrinking work force have become more urgent,
and with the domestic construction market forecasted to contract
after 2020, we recognize that enhancing our response capabilities
and further strengthening our business structure will be critical for
maintaining the Kanamoto Group's continuing growth phase.

“BULL55", the long-term vision we are currently executing,
generally is progressing with results that exceed our initial
projection, and the remaining two business periods encompassing
the final stages will be a vitally important wrap-up phase that will
set the Kanamoto Group's orientation for subsequent periods.

We will continue to pursue our priority policy of ensuring
the optimum quantities and models of rental equipment to
meet both construction demand and customers’ needs, and
resolutely maintain the construction equipment rental business
fundamentals of always providing convenience for customers
while seeking greater operating efficiency and further productivity
improvements through the operation of new systems.

In the years ahead as well, we will move forward to achieve the
goal of our new long-term vision to be “an excellent and dynamic
group that uses its solid earnings as a base to reward shareholders,
customers and employees’.

We look forward to continuing to receive the unwavering support
of our shareholders and investors and your encouragement for the
Kanamoto Group in the future.
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FEIL
Millions of yen Thousands of U
2016 2017 2017

EEEENE Consolidated operating results
Pl Net sales ¥ 144,870 ¥ 158,428 $ 1,400,038
RIS Operating profit 15,134 16,665 147,277
RERE Ordinary profit 14,405 17,193 151,398
BB EIURB I HLEAMAZE  Profit attributable to owners of parent 8,008 10,744 94,952

B &AL HARF R ROE 11.1% 13.2% 13.2%

BoZ4Em Dividend payout ratio 19.6% 16.4% 16.4%
Bl Plant and equipment investment 29,441 26,584 234,932
EREATEUIREE Consolidated financial position
& Total assets 220,836 227,545 2,010,825
AR Net assets 81,434 91,788 811,142

BHo&EARLE Equity ratio 34.7% 37.9% 37.9%
EiEFrya - 70-0DIRA  Consolidated cash flows
BEEHCLBTrva - 7A—  Netcash provided by (used in) operating activities 26,618 37,788 333,937
BEFMCEDFrva - 7O—  Netcash provided by (used in) investing activities -8,940 -4,747 (41,949)
iSRSNI C LB Fvva - 7O—  Netcash provided by (used in) financing activities -20,726 -30,960 (273,601)
BENUIRERFHIRES Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 33,069 35,160 310,714
1RSSR Information per share of common stock YFEn Us. doltl?r[; (Note)
L HARRE Net income per share ¥229.16 ¥304.05 $2.68
W& Net assets per share 2,169.93 2,440.41 21.56
FHRYSe Dividends per share 45.00 50.00 0.44

*RNENTVBREIVREEIL 20177F 10831 BREDS BLZDORBAEL — M FIL=11316AICELVBELTVET,
Note: U.S. dollar amounts have been translated from yen for convenience only, at the rate ¥113.16=US $1, the approximate exchange rate on October 31,2017.

BA%5 - 18 E¥BE&  Finance and Investment Strategies
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A unique financial strategy corresponding to the
characteristics of a stock business

Because equipment rental is a stock-based business, Kanamoto's
debt/equity ratio is higher than in other industries. As a financial
strategy to service this debt, the Company is working to increase
shareholders’ equity, and reducing interest-bearing debt and
streamlining its balance sheet to limit capital asset investment
to within the scope of annual cash flow.



Consolidated Financial Highlights I
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Net Sales

B3 /Millions of yen
200,000

158,428
150,000 144,870
133,292
125,555

110,831
100000— — — ——

50000— — —— ——
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REHBEICRET % LRMFIE

Profit Attributable to Owners of Parent

B3 /Millions of yen

HERS BEAE
Operating Profit Ordinary Profit
B /Millions of yen B /Millions of yen
20,000 20,000
17,193
16,454 16,270 16,665 16,078 16,164
15,134
15000 15000 14405
11,392 11,073
10000— — — —— 10000— —— ——
5000— — —— —— 5000— —— ——
0 0
13 14 15 16 17 13 14 15 16 17
Total Assets Net Assets

B /Millions of yen

B /Millions of yen

20,000 300,000 100,000
91,788
81,434
227,545
15,000 225,000 S65.01 9220'836 75,000 11998
188,491 65,513
0200 0scr 10744 169,250 56,192
10,000 : . 150000 — —— —— —— 50000 — —— ——
8,098
5,809
5000— — —— —— 75000— —— —— —— 25000 — —— ——
0 , , 0 . 0— .
13 14 15 '16 17 13 14 15 16 17 13 14 15 16 17
B AN
Change in EBITDA (Consolidated)
B AM/Millions of Yen
60,000
A future-oriented investment strategy to secure the 45,000
source of Kanamoto’s earnings T
The Company makes vigorous capital investments annually, 15,000
which result in an amortization burden corresponding to this 0

volume of assets. Equipment rental, however, is a business
characterized by the ability to receive a gain from the sale
of used equipment after rental earnings have been ensured.
In other words, the depreciation expenses incurred during
each fiscal year become the source of future earnings. For

this reason, Kanamoto considers its most important man- 60,000
agement indicators to be EBITDA* (operating income + de- 45,000
preciation and amortization expense + lease fee payments 30,000
+ installment payment charges + purchase payments for 15,000
small-scale construction equipment and inexpensive rental 0

assets) and ROI (return on investment), rather than current
year operating results, and strives to achieve growth in these

indicators.

15 16 17
EBITDA=Z 3728 + Bf{H AN 2%
EBITDA = Operating income + depreciation and amortization expense

EBITDA+D#tFE (GELL)
Change in EBITDA+ (Consolidated)
B HF/Millions of Yen

15 16 "7
EBITDAY = EBITDA+3Z3A1 — 4+ BB F 20k + /B E

EBITDA* = EBITDA + lease fee payments + installment payment charges + purchase
payments for small-scale construction equipment and inexpensive rental
assets costing less than ¥200 thousand and depreciated within one year

Kanamoto 2018 7
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The Kanamoto Group has marshalled its total capabilities and will continue to
assist disaster-stricken regions such as Tohoku and Kumamoto.
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Progress on reconstruction and revitalization underway
in disaster-stricken regions

Seven years have passed since the occurrence of the Great East Japan
Earthquake. Following the "Concentrated Revival Period” through
FY2015, we are now nearing the halfway mark of the “Reconstruction
and Revitalization Period”, the overall completion period for recon-
struction. In the disaster-stricken region, work is progressing on the
restoration of towns, including public housing for disaster-affected
individuals and Collective Relocation Disaster Prevention Promotion
Projects (relocation to higher ground), and on full-scale infrastructure
reconstruction, beginning with transportation networks including re-
construction roads, reconstruction support roads, and railways. Work
on the "reconstruction to create a local revitalization model” as laid
out by the central government is steadily moving forward as well.

In addition, by strengthening cooperation among Kanamoto Group
firms and implementing measures such as centralized positioning of
management resources, we have created an ongoing support orga-
nization to respond to the Kumamoto Earthquake that struckin 2016
and to the typhoon and torrential rainfall disasters that occurred that
sameyearand in 2017 in areas such as Kagoshima and Hokkaido, and
are devoting our total capabilities to reconstruction efforts.

EFREFEHTOREERTS ERREEMLTHOEFTE

High ground construction work in Rikuzentakata Bank protection works in Yamamoto Town,
Watari-gun, Miyagi Prefecture

City, wate Prefecture

1t@é7@%§§m@i§§ﬁizf§m1$ JuimE AR F =R D) | K ERIBTSE

Memuro bridge disaster reconstruction works  River disaster restoration works in Memuro Town,

in Memuro Town, Kasai-gun, Hokkaido Kasai-gun, Hokkaido
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Kagoshima Prefecture ™
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Road construction works in Natori City, Miyagi  Reconstruction Town Planning Project in
Prefecture Onagawa Town, Oshika-gun, Miyagi Prefecture

A
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River disaster restoration works in Kanoya City, River disaster restoration works in Kanoya City,

Kagoshima Prefecture @



‘ Kanamoto Group's Response to Recent Natural Disasters

FREARIRERDEFIRR

Progress on Major Restoration and Improvement Projects

RAFRKEXOWKHTIE, EROBLEIFEGIFRBRNGEREENMTONTVEY, IITRRE
WERLETD TREAVTS) HEMDETFDZZERETS MERE5 IV ThZhOEHIRA%E
BIEALET,

In areas devastated by the Great East Japan Earthquake disaster, full-scale reconstruction projects are being
carried out to bring restoration efforts to a successful conclusion. The progress on public infrastructure, particularly

the transportation network, and on town restoration to create new places for victims of the disaster to live and
work, is reported below.

Public infrastructure =37 Completed ET Stred

NHEAYTS5

= B8 - EEORR WEDRT

Progress rate Status of restoration and recovery / Status of damage

BN Coastal measures

& T X #  Number of districts where construction has started 462

SE T HBEX EX  Number of districts where construction has been completed 219
0 10 20 30 20 50 60 70 80 %0 100@%) EEHE X E  Number of districts where construction is planned 500
2 4 X X
EELERR - MEITIRIERE Reconstruction roads and reconstruction support roads
ETIHER Length completed 570km
BAFER Lengthinuse 277km
SHELFER  Length planned 570km

10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80 90 100 (%)

£ Railways
“ EBITERLIRIGIER  Length of routes reopened for operation  2,267km

WK LTBRIFIER  Length of routes damaged 2,330km

o

10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80 90 100 (%)

77 Harbors
J & I 5 PR # Numberoflocations where construction has started 131

% T B M B oo weeonmoisteone 129

BRUTABIROEFE  Number of locations where port facilties were damaged 131

o

=}
o
N
S
w
S
ES
S
w
S
o
&
~
S
®
S

90 100 (%)

B‘ET5OKY

Restoration urban development =37 Completed

EHE &IR - BEORR WEDRR

& Started

Progress rate Status of restoration and recovery / Status of damage

KEREETE Disaster public housing

FRHEEREHFEL  Number of home sites secured 29,884
% 7 F B Numberofhomes completed 25,849
0 10 2 30 40 50 60 70 80 90 1000) H B = # Numberofhomes planned 30,553

€< = o o . .
Bh X SEEBFEER Disaster prevention and collective relocation
l B IR I Number of areas started 332

FET I Number of areas completed 312
0 10 20 30 40 50 60 20 80 %0 100®%) EHEHEX . Number of areas planned 333
X EEE IR Land Readjustment Project

B I HIXE  Number of areas started 50
-I_ SETHEX L Number of areas completed 17
0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 20 %0 100%) FHEBX# Number of areas planned 50
[—] = A
FIRHEERF school facilities
% T % H # Numberof schools completed 2,297

et -
20 30 40 50 60 70 80 % 100(%) KEEIIELEREARE Number of applications for school disaster recovery projects 2,341

o
=)

P | EEFENERORR Q017411 B6ARK) | ZEITIFR
Source: Prepared based on Current Status of Reconstruction (November 6, 2017 Update) materials from the
Reconstruction Agency
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Overview of Operations

AV LIE GER) SR#® Operating Results Milions o s
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Construction Equipment Rental Business

Efforts to be “worksite-ready” and promote “rationalization of operations”.
Working to fulfill rental’s mission as social infrastructure.

The construction equipment rental business accounts for over 90% of the net sales of the Kanamoto Group.
Through this core business, Kanamoto helps customers rationalize their operations. Beginning with engineering
works and construction, we provide services to address all of the worksite concerns we hear in the field.

A full line-up of approximately 500,000 rental items,
available throughout Japan

Practicing “Rent to Sale” through flexible operating
decisions

Kanamoto owns approximately 460 different models and
500,000 rental items. Naturally, this includes various hand tools
and construction equipment, such as dump trucks and hydrau-
lic excavators. But Kanamoto also stands prepared with items to
satisfy every demand, from temporary housing materials and
structures to electrical generators. In addition to various models,
we make sure we offer an ample selection of sizes, plus a broad
range of optional items. At Kanamoto, we continually enhance
our product lineup and provide complete support, and custom-
ers have come to rely on Kanamoto as their one-stop partner for
all their equipment and parts procurement needs.

Creation of a thorough maintenance organization at
every branch

With approximately 190 offices nationwide, and more than 480
locations for the Kanamoto Group as a whole, Kanamoto is con-
tinuing to add branches while strengthening its alliance strategy.
Ensuring that each base in areas where the Company continues
to expand is staffed with maintenance personnel who boast the
highest technical skills is a key Kanamoto standard. Day in and
day out, our maintenance employees conscientiously perform
their activities to ensure equipment will demonstrate its peak
operating performance. This thorough maintenance enhances
the asset value of equipment sold in the used equipment mar-
ket.

The clearance sale value of our construction equipment is raised
even further by the fact Kanamoto selects construction equip-
ment that is in use around the world. Of course, one criterion
used equipment purchasers will rely on when selecting prod-
ucts is that the parts and maintenance systems available in oth-
er countries are similar to the networks established in Japan. In
order to meet this requirement, Kanamoto selects the leading
construction equipment manufacturers in Japan. We will con-
tinue to provide thorough maintenance and make strict rental
equipment selections, and build the Kanamoto brand on both
rentals and secondhand equipment.

The essence of Kanamoto's business model is to recover invest-
ment outlays through rental income following the introduction
of equipment, which is ultimately disposed of through sales.
One ongoing theme in the Company’s operations has been
to boost profit margins by easing the depreciation burden
and extending the useable life of assets. At the same time, the
Company operates used construction equipment models that
enjoy strong demand by flexibly judging the timing of sales in
response to global market conditions.

From BtoB to BtoC

In cooperation with Komeri Co,, Ltd,, a major Japanese DIY com-
pany, Kanamoto is also developing its rental business targeting
individual users. We have set up tool rental corners in Komeri
Power Store branches, part of the do-it-yourself store network
Komeri is developing, and stocked them with an ample equip-
ment lineup ranging from tools for professional use to small
construction equipment, to meet the needs of individual cus-
tomers, small building contractors and farmers. Kanamoto is
working to increase profit-making opportunities by expanding
its business field from BtoB to BtoC.

Conforming to a range of needs with a full compen-
sation system

Kanamoto has established a compensation system to fully pro-
tect customers against the risks of theft or an accident caused
by its construction equipment and vehicles during the rental pe-
riod. Moreover, in recent years, both the type of accidents that
occur and the scope of compensation have grown more com-
plex, generating increasingly diverse user needs. Kanamoto has
responded by offering red-carpet service, including the assign-
ment of inspectors to each region to reflect customer requests
and perform investigations of compensation details.

Kanamoto 2018 11
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Overview of Operations
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Kanamoto’s business creates earnings
opportunities in many sectors.

Along with its construction-related businesses, Kanamoto is working to broaden earnings opportunities in
various sectors by developing operations such as its businesses related to the Steel Sales Division,
the Company’s information and telecommunications-related division, and the welfare-related business.

Steel Product Sales Business

Supply of the steel products that are indispensable for
civil engineering works and construction

The steel products sales business was Kanamoto's core business
when the Company was established, and can proudly be called
Kanamoto's starting point. In addition to supplying general steel
products such as steel bar and H-beams, sheet piles and single
tube pipes mainly in Hokkaido, Kanamoto's Steel Sales Division
handles contracts for various specialized works, including con-
struction of ALC (autoclave lightweight concrete) exterior walls
or insulation construction works, as well as the sale and installa-
tion of products such as “KT roof system” insulated waterproof
roofing. By selling construction materials as well as undertaking
construction work on consignment, we help customers mini-
mize complicated procedures and slash costs.

Since being established, Kanamoto's businesses related to the
Steel Sales Division have remained stable and today we remain
one of the leading suppliers in Hokkaido's steel products whole-
sale industry. In the years ahead, the division will continue to
supply the high-quality steel products essential for engineering
works and construction, including infrastructure construction,
that support our lifestyles.

Computing Products Business

Kanamoto’s IT rental business always offers the latest
models

Kanamoto's information and telecommunications-related divi-
sion has continued to achieve substantial results. These include
being the first to offer for rent in Japan the IBM PC-AT, the most
advanced model of its time and the forerunner for today’s Win-
dows machine standard, and being the second company in the
world - and the first in Japan - certified by Sun Microsystems as a
rental firm for Sun workstations.

Today Kanamoto continues to provide efficient hardware, as
well as propose a variety of network solutions. The computer
industry experiences remarkable progress in technologies, and
Kanamoto continually develops services from our customers’
point of view to ensure they can use the most advanced services
available from both a hardware and software perspective.

Welfare-related Business
Supporting home care with a broad lineup

NISHIKEN CO., LTD., which joined the Kanamoto Group in March
2016, rents and sells welfare devices and materials and nursing
care products as well as construction equipment.

For welfare-related businesses, the key words are “safety and
security”. NISHIKEN maintains a broad lineup of products, rang-
ing from personal-use products to training equipment for care
and prevention, to support the care-giving activities demanded
by society and help individuals who are receiving care become
more independent and mobile. NISHIKEN has also developed
a service organization at its own factory, including equipment
maintenance and prompt shipment, that is based on thorough
quality control.

Kanamoto 2018 13
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To approach this long-term vision, we formulated a phased
execution plan, and under our Medium-term Management
Plan (BULL53) covering the initial phase from 2015 (51st
Business Period) to 2017 (53rd Business Period), we were
able to achieve results roughly in line with the plan. The two
remaining business periods encompassing the advanced
stages will be an even more important phase, preparing
the ground for our next growth stage. We will continue to
proactively pursue expansion of our base of operations in
the Kanto & Koshinetsu Region, where large-scale projects
including infrastructure construction and redevelopment
projects related to the Tokyo Olympics and Paralympic Games
to be held in 2020 are planned, and work to establish an
organization focused on expanding sales and earnings in the
Tokyo metropolitan area, based on the medium to long-term
demand outlook. As an engine for long-term growth, the
Company will also strategically pursue the creation of overseas
bases of operations, primarily in ASEAN countries where there
is significant latent demand.

At the same time, to improve risk resilience and react quickly to
changes in its operating environment, Kanamoto will work to
enhance corporate performance management, strengthen its
governance organization, and build the management systems
that will enable it to grow continuously over the long-term.

>~ TBULL55, Long-term Vision “BULL55”

FY2015—2017 FHAE EFHEBULL53 Medium-term Management Plan BULL 53 FY2018—2019

RIELBMERIE  Results and numerical targets

o8 Left axis  E#E75 L& Consolidated net sales  Z5## Right axis &&= 2724 Consolidated operating profit
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Priority policies under Kanamoto’s Long-term Vision “BULL55"
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Expansion of domestic base of operations

In addition to focusing on the Tokyo metropolitan area where much of Japan’s public
) 0 m ESti c and private sector demand is concentrated, Kanamoto will undertake branch develop-

ment, pursue M&A, and remain on a growth track in areas west of the Kanto Region,
while maintaining net sales in the Hokkaido and Tohoku regions.

B R

B BB Y UAR-IVOBFFERAZEHFHEAS B DD, T5IcHEZELUASEANEE
ZROICBAEEZERL. 317 —TDEENHF CLHAMBURYPY—)V N ITEGE
RHREHOBTENRAENS AV ERIT 24 AN LA T0VEVERE BRICE
I EXEMZXS.

Overseas development

Kanamoto will maintain or expand its existing subsidiaries in Shanghai, Hong
Kong, and Singapore, further expand overseas operations in the rapidly develop-
ing ASEAN countries, and take steps to develop business operations in countries such
as Indonesia, Thailand, Vietnam and the Philippines where demand is anticipated for
specialized equipment for engineering works such as ground improvement and the shield
tunneling method, sectors in which the Kanamoto Group possesses unigue expertise.

REARL—a>v DREL

Ut ) — T OIS RRBAD SR EBODL(IHBEER, HLBEEE0D
SBRICPEBTOLAOE LD SHIBER L. IR NHORFERS,

. ALY H— MEREDITS, BRESHEDYRT LA & EBO—BOBE( DS,

Optimization of internal operational processes

Kanamoto considers its construction equipment management system and improvements
in operating efficiency to be the wellspring of the Kanamoto Group’s earnings, and seeks
to increase operating efficiency and reduce costs through stronger control over rental
unit prices and operational process improvements.

Kanamoto will also further boost the efficiency of operations through the expansion of its
business unit support functions and systems integration with related Group companies.

IN—=ID5IE, T IV —TZEIECEEREZ  To help grasp the operating environment surrounding the
BT 276, SREHE TER AR EABAE  Kanamoto Group, the report on the following pages looks at

o . the domestic and overseas construction demand expected
NBENNDRRFRIC OV TLAR— PN LET, to receive short-term, concentrated investment in the future.
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Construction demand for the 2020 Tokyo Olympic

Games and railway construction to create Japan's
“transportation axis” go into overdrive
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Status of utility pole elimination in major cities in the United States, Europe, Asia, and in Japan
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Infrastructure development ahead of the 2020
Tokyo Olympics and Paralympic Games

With projects to build the competition venues for the
2020 Tokyo Olympic Games already underway, full-
fledged development of transportation infrastructure
to support the event has begun. In addition to the plan
to open a new line linking central Tokyo and Haneda
Airport, plans are moving forward for a new station
between the Shinagawa and Tamachi stations on the
Yamanote Line and Keihin Tohoku Line, which will be
timed to open for service with the start of the Olympic
Games. Development plans for the three ring roads that
will be the key to improving transportation efficiency
in the Tokyo metropolitan area, including the Tokyo
Outer Ring Road (Tokyo-Gaikan Expressway) targeted
for completion by about 2020, and the Metropolitan
Inter-City Expressway (Ken-O Expressway) that will link
each expressway, are moving forward as well.

RRAHBETEDRE (ERER)
Site of Tokyo Olympics-related works (waterfront area)

Japan’s 30-year old utility pole elimination
project picks up speed

A utility pole elimination project is currently being pursued
in various regions of Japan from the viewpoints of landscape
improvement, natural disaster countermeasures, and traffic
safety. In fact, this project has an unexpectedly old history.
The government took the first steps to relocate wires and
cables underground, the most typical method for eliminat-
ing utility poles, in 1986, and has been carrying out this effort
continuously for over 30 years. In contrast to major cities in
Western Europe and Asia, however, where utility pole elimi-
nation has largely been achieved, Japan’s efforts to remove
such poles lags significantly, with only 8% of all poles having
been eliminated in Tokyo's 23 wards and just 6% in Osaka.
Consequently, the Act Concerning the Promotion of Elimi-
nation of Utility Poles was enforced in
December 2016. As a result, a new na-
tional plan to promote the elimination
of utility poles will be move forward, and
construction projects to remove poles
in various regions will be accelerated, all
with an eye on the 2020 Tokyo Olympics.

HFT | BEAEd EER O (T—425) | ZEIC/ER

Source: Prepared based on Promotion of Utility Pole
Elimination (Data Tables) from the Ministry of Land,
Infrastructure, Transport and Tourism
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Shinkansen lines and the Linear Chuo Shinkansen route in Japan’s various prefectures
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New Shinkansen routes finalized

New Shinkansen line extension projects are underway
in several regions. In addition to the start of construc-
tion on the Shin-Hakodate-Hokuto to Sapporo section
of the Hokkaido Shinkansen, set to open in FY2030,
construction work is also progressing on the Kyushu
Shinkansen West Kyushu Route (Nagasaki Route),
where operations are slated to begin in FY2022.

Work has also begun on the Kanazawa-Tsuruga section of
the Hokuriku Shinkansen, which is scheduled to open in
FY2022, while construction is progressing on other works
such as the Shin-Hokuriku Tunnel, which will be the sixth
longest railway tunnel in Japan once completed, and on
the Kuzuryu River Bridge, which will be Japan’s first com-
bined Shinkansen/roadway bridge. Construction between
Tsuruga and Shin-Osaka is planned to begin in FY2031,
with the aim of opening that route during FY2046.

Full-scale work on Linear Chuo Shinkansen
tunnels is underway

Japan hopes to launch Linear Chuo Shinkansen service
in 2027. Total expenditures for the immense project
have been provisionally calculated to cost between 8.3
trillion to 9.9 trillion yen. Tunnel intervals will account
for 246.6km or about 86% of the 285.6km segment be-
tween Shinagawa and Nagoya, and full-scale construc-
tion of the Southern Alps Tunnel in Yamanashi Prefec-
ture has been underway since December 2015.

In August 2016, Kanamoto launched its Specialized
Equipment Engineering Division, and established a
Tunnel Machinery Section and Water Treatment Ma-
chinery Section in the same division, and is working to
strengthen its organization to be able to respond in all
directions, in cooperation with other group companies,
to the increased work on the new Shinkansen projects,
the Linear Chuo Shinkansen, and tunnel-related con-
struction works on each main line route in the future.

MBEH

Shin-Aornort

FUBEM IR

) Z 7 RRIFER

Linear Chuoe Shin<arisen

2HEB
Vs Vs o mE A BMEETE
AR NAEHE ~ RREAL P
- Sein-Csaka Fiscal 2027
3 B % *'93' Scheduled opening of Tokyo — Nagoya segment
Ragosbina Chuo Nete:Planned exiasion betiweer Sacoya and Osaka
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Infrastructure development for disaster prevention

and disaster mitigation is moving ahead, including
large-scale renewal of expressways and bridges
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Japan’s infrastructure has reached its renewal
period

A wave of antiquated and deteriorating infrastructure
is washing over Japan. The need to proceed appropri-
ately with infrastructure maintenance management,
and renewal has become an urgent issue, including the
occurrence of accidents attributable to aging and dete-
rioration, and expressway management companies are
working on renewal plans. The three NEXCO companies
will spend about three trillion yen, with just the Shuto
Expressway and Hanshin Expressway, both of which
are large-scale projects, requiring a combined total ex-
penditure of approximately one trillion yen. In addi-
tion, much of Japan’s infrastructure including bridges,
river works, drainage and sewage systems, and ports was
built through a concentrated effort during the high-eco-
nomic growth period around the 1960s, and has reached
its age for renewal. For example, in 2013 the percentage
of roadway bridges that are more than 50-years old was
18%, a figure that will rise to 67% in 2033. Infrastructure
maintenance management and renewal expenses will
jump in the future, and even when just the structures
under the jurisdiction of the Ministry of Land, Infrastructure,
Transport and Tourism are considered, are predicted to
be 30-50% higher than such outlays currently.

N B REROMEMRTE

i Tokyo Metropolitan Expressway seismic reinforcement works

— o, =
IR EROER - fEHEHE
Expressway Renovation and Repair Plan
X5 ER BEE (BEM)
Classification Length Cost (100 mil. yen)
KIRMEEH  Large-scale renovation 237km 17,468
i ° :F ° EE*E,EEEG (NEXCO 3*1) . KIRIE(ERE  Large-scale repair 1,872km 12,597
East, Central, and West Nippon Expressway (3 NEXCO companies)
& & Toul 2,109km 30,064
KIRIEEH  Large-scale renovation 8km 3,775
=
Eﬂmﬁﬁﬁ KIRIE(EHE  Large-scale repair 55km 2487
Tokyo Metropolitan Expressway
& & Total 63km 6,262
KIMEEH  Large-scale renovation 5km 1,509
Fﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ KAMEMEHE  Large-scale repair 57km 2,176
Hanshin Expressway
& 5 Totl 62km 3,685

AT | EERER A HRDER - (B EICR I HEREEITIER

Source : Prepared based on materials related to the renovation and repair plans announced by each expressway company
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Promoting technology that will help maintain
safety

Given such present conditions, public works programs
addressing infrastructure upgrades and repairs are al-
ready underway in various regions throughout Japan
based on The Basic Plan for Extending the Lifespan of In-
frastructure, one part of the push for “national resilience”
for which the government has announced vast expendi-
tures on the scale of 200 trillion yen.

The Kanamoto Group is actively developing products
for infrastructure maintenance and repair as well as new
products based on advanced technologies, and intro-
ducing products registered in NETIS* (New Technical
Information Provision System). In addition, we have pre-
pared an ample lineup of special construction equipment
for ground improvement, plus teams of ground improve-
ment specialists at companies within the Group, enabling
us to lend a hand for works at locations such as petroleum
industrial complexes where deep underground construc-
tion work, underwater work, and thorough prevention of
ground sinking and subsidence are absolutely essential.
Demand for such specialized engineering works equip-
ment is also vigorous in ASEAN countries, as described on
pages 22 and 23. Kanamoto's construction equipment is
on the job not only in Japan, but at overseas infrastruc-
ture construction project sites as well.

* Technical information database accumulated based on the Ministry of
Land, Infrastructure, Transport and Tourism'’s System for Application
of Technology in Public Works Etc.

SHDOBRRURE B

Kanamoto's “Bridge Dragon” bridge inspection vehicle

BERRS0F L LBBTHHEREDIS LI ROMISTER - EHE

Percentage of infrastructure more than 50-years old and future maintenance and renewal costs

2013 2023 2033
ﬁﬂgﬁ 18% 43% 67%
Road bridges
kv 20% 34% 50%
Tunnels
3 s =
;E"" EEW:E (ZKFE%) 25% 43% 64%
River management facilities (floodgates etc.)
£
FKEEES 2% 9% 24%
Drainage/sewerage pipes
=3
AR 8% 32% 58%
Harbor quays
HESETE - IS (HEHER) 3.6 JEM 43~ 5.1 KM 4.6 ~ 5.5 JKM

Maintenance management and renewal costs (estimate result)

3.6 trillion yen

4.3-5.1 trillion yen 4.6-5.5 trillion yen

AT | EX0BEER (HREARDIRET R ZRITIER

Source: Prepared based on Status and Future of Social Capital materials from the Ministry of Land, Infrastructure, Transport and Tourism
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A worksite productivity revolution will be achieved

through full-scale ICT utilization and conversion to

i-Construction
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i-Constructionwmg Overview of i-Construction

Information-aided construction using

“j-Construction” efforts to accelerate

“i-Construction” seeks to boost productivity by intro-
ducing ICT (Information and Communication Technol-
ogy) to every process at construction worksites, from
surveying, design, and construction to maintenance
management. The Ministry of Land, Infrastructure and
Transport is promoting this measure as one solution
to the serious labor shortage problems confronting
Japan’s construction industry, such as the decline in
the number of young workers and decrease in skilled
operators because of the declining birthrate and aging
of Japan’s society. “ICT earthmoving” to fully utilize ICT
in civil engineering works was implemented earlier in
FY2016, and i-Construction efforts aimed at shortening
construction periods and manpower savings, including
the use of construction machinery equipped with ma-
chine control (MC) for road construction works and the
start of “ICT paving works” using terrestrial laser scan-
ners, will be accelerated from FY2017.

Surveying

A B it - IHE

Design and construction planning

B I ® &

Construction Inspections

3RTHET—RITED
5t - ELEE

Design and construction plans created

3RTAE

3D surveying

i-Construction

ICTEEE S MIC K B HET

Construction by
ICT construction equipment

BrEOENEL

Inspection labor savings

using three-dimensional survey data

Fo—>zERALEE
BEHEGEIRKLT.
ERECEHN (RRE
3 3 TTRIEE RAE,

Perform rapid surface
(high density)
three-dimensional surveys
by photogrammetry using
drones.

3SRTHET—2 (RRH
) LREEEEDESD
5.TE FY+-8&Y
18) ZEEEH.

Automatically calculate the
amount of construction (cut
earth and fill volume) from
the difference between the
three-dimensional survey
data (current topography)
and the design screen.

3RFTREE T2 G LK,
ICTE R = BEHIE L. B3R
RIBDIoT * & R,

* Internet of ThingsDE&,
TEETELHE/ICE VT —HEHNMMTE
N Ry FT—2ICDBERBIREDT &
Automatically control ICT
construction equipment, and
implement loT* at construction
sites, using three- dimensional
design data.

* Internet of Things.
Refers to attaching sensors and other
components to various devices and
connecting them to a network

A

FO—>ic&s3%
TTHIEZER LR
B ET, HEAED
SEHNFRBELELGY.
REEED R,

By performing
inspections utilizing
three-dimensional
surveys by drones, no
formal documents are
required and the
number of inspection
items can be cut in
half.

S

ERDAE

AEDRE

Conventional method Implement survey

-

REEOSHEITEZHE

Calculate construction earth volume
from design drawings

BRERICShETTIRY RE

Install stakes based on design drawings

A
-

ERIcLPRE

Inspect based on documents
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ICT will help improve natural disaster
countermeasures as well

The ICT utilization trend has spread to the national resil-
ience program described earlier as well. In August 2017,
Japan’s central government announced a policy to review
the Fundamental Plan for National Resilience based on les-
sons learned from the large-scale disasters that occurred
over the past five years. Specifically, the thinking is to posi-
tion countermeasure enhancements that enable the use
of ICT and other advanced technologies to the maximum
extent possible as a key pillar of the Fundamental Plan,
based on cases where the utilization of technologies such
as driverless construction equipment for infrastructure di-
saster recovery projects has increased.

Kanamoto has already established a special division for
information-aided construction and introduced construc-
tion equipment for information-aided construction, and
is implementing systems operations support. In addition,
our New Products Office has developed and introduced
a construction equipment remote-control robot that
achieves radio-control of general-purpose construction
equipment, and in October 2017 we established a new
Internet of Things Promotion Section to support the re-
cently growing need for development of equipment that
applies loT-related technologies. Kanamoto will continue
to support construction production systems utilizing ICT,
which are expected to find even greater applications in
the future.

#:1it 9% 'DOKA ROBO

i-Constructionf:lc@ElF=O0—F= v 7 (ICT;EAICELFT-HYVEEFH)

Roadmap for promoting i-Construction (Efforts for utilization of ICT)

Ficalyer
T8 H tem FE

ICTET
ICT earthmoving

ICTSREE

ICT paving

ICTiERT
ICT dredging

i-Bridge

fIEADIEA
(V2B )

Expand to other
engineering works
(tunnels, dams,
maintenance
management, etc,)

2016

OEBEHOUET (REF158E, HERE),
REBRORE
Revise standards (15 standards such as inspection standards,
estimate standards); decide ordering method

O%ix - L (ICTEIHN : BHE)

Ordering/ Construction (ICT earthmoving method: Direct control)

OAMEH &Y - =8)

Human resources development (lectures, practical training)

OMROMER. BEM - FFHAFOREL

Verify results; revise standards, ordering method, etc.

OBEHOUET

Revise standards

ORHBEEE
Formulate estimate standards
O REHRDRE

Decide ordering method

2017

OE#EE, HIHNFOREL
=23RTUAVAIR DB EENEF
Revise standards, ordering method, etc.
=Relax 3D UAV survey standards, etc.

O3tk - T (BAEITHEX)

Ordering / Construction (expand to municipalities)

OAHREHN (GBE - RH)

Human resources development (lectures, practical training)

O3tix - BT (ICTEEAR - ICTRT AN : )
Ordering/Construction
(ICT paving method, ICT dredging method: Direct control)

OAMER GBE - RB)

Human resources development (lectures, practical training)

OMROMER - BEH - HFHAEDOIEL

Verify results; revise standards, ordering method, etc.

[F 2RIV, B L, $EFEEM]  [Tunnels, dams, maintenance management, other]
O ICTH & 1 iRES

Study applicability of ICT technology
ORELEER, HiIHNEDHRET

Revise required standards, ordering method, etc.

OBRR LARDICTE BREEEIRE

Study applicable scope of ICT, etc. for bridge superstructures

O&BBEHDYET

Revise standards

OMHEERE

Formulate estimate standards

OREHADRE

Decide ordering method

AT ¢ EE3SBEER i-Construction RIS M [HIXE] (CAlF BRI Ho—BRkI
Source: Partial excerpt from Efforts to Advance the i-Construction Productivity Revolution at Construction Sites material from the Ministry of Land, Infrastructure, Transport and Tourism

REEMHMOBERRICRBLEMBEXMOARORY b, Qv /Y IO O—-5TERB

“DOKA ROBO" uses cockpit controllers to remotely operate a two-arm, two-leg humanoid robot
placed in the driver's seat of construction equipment

2018 2019 2020 2021~2025

O BEEICPDCAY 1Y)V ER
Apply PDCA cycle in each fiscal year

-

OICTEIFADIEX (B - BialF)
Expand ICT earthmoving method
(direct control/municipalities)

-

OICTER - RBIERDFIREE

Verify results from expansion of ICT utilization, holidays

O BEFEITPDCAY 1Y)V &R
Apply PDCA cycle in each fiscal year

-

OICTEAARDIEX (5% - Biak)
Expand ICT utilization method
(direct control/municipalities)

-

OICTER - (RBHEADIHRIRFE

Verify results from expansion of ICT utilization, holidays

20195EITHBR. PRIV, H L, BROD
Bl HIFEEADICTEANLL

Expand ICT introduction to bridges, tunnels,
dams, paving operations, and maintenance
management in 2019

\
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Infrastructure demand in ASEAN countries will

expand against the backdrop of rapid, stable

economic growth
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AR FLTEGARTOITY
Large-scale projects are under construction in Vietnam
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Stable growth expected for ASEAN

Infrastructure construction projects are being carried out
vigorously in Asian countries against the backdrop of rapid
economic growth and urbanization. China, the world's sec-
ond largest economic power, and India, which will have the
world’s largest population in the 2020s, are increasing their
presence, together with ASEAN (Association of Southeast
Asian Nations). According to the World Economic Outlook re-
leased by the International Monetary Fund (IMF) in October
2017, ASEAN is expected to maintain an economic growth
rate in excess of 5%, while its working-age population is ex-
pected to continue growing stably in the future as well.

In addition to the branches it has already established
in Shanghai, Hong Kong, and Singapore, since 2015 the
Kanamoto Group has strengthened its focus on ASEAN
and has established new joint venture companies in In-
donesia, Vietnam, Thailand, and the Philippines.

Infrastructure construction in ASEAN countries
is proceeding at a vigorous pace

In Singapore, in addition to the large-scale redevelopment
of the North Region and development of the Marina South
district based on the land development basic plan (Mas-
ter Plan 2013) announced by the Urban Redevelopment
Authority (URA), work is also progressing on the plan to
extend the total length of the Mass Rapid Transport (MRT)
network to approximately 360km, or double the current
amount of track, by 2030. In Indonesia, the government
currently is implementing its National Medium Term De-
velopment Plan to drive infrastructure investment, with
total funding equivalent to 44 trillion yen over the five-year
period from 2015 through 2019, focusing on electric pow-
er, ports, shipping, roads, and housing as priority sectors.
Whether it is Lach Huyen Port infrastructure development
or sewer and drainage system construction in Vietnam,
works such as double-tracking of national railway lines or
the urban rail transit and expressway network construc-
tion being planned for the Bangkok metropolitan area in
Thailand, or the road map for implementing infrastructure
development with a value of seven trillion yen by 2030 that
has been approved in the Philippines, vigorous construc-
tion demand is anticipated in the ASEAN countries where
the Kanamoto Group has opened bases.

In the future Kanamoto will strive to develop business re-
lated to the expansion of infrastructure demand in ASEAN
countries, while maintaining and expanding each com-
pany’s operating results and deepening cooperation with
each overseas partner company.
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Optimization of internal operational processes that

will serve as the “basis of earnings”
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Improvement of utilization rates and profit
margins through system improvements

Rental revenues are determined by multiplying asset quanti-
ties by rental unit prices and utilization ratios. At Kanamoto,
we believe greater efficiency of construction equipment
management and operations form the basis of the Kanamoto
Group'’s earnings, and recognize improvement of the uti-
lization ratio through “optimization of internal operational
processes” to be a critical issue.

Improvement of our current systems is indispensable for im-
proving the utilization ratio. As a first step, we are changing
the machine codes for each existing rental product from the
plates and stickers used presently to IC tags and QR codes, and
have begun using dedicated readers and communication cir-
cuits to scan the identification information recorded there and
utilize the data for equipment deliveries and pickups and for
warehouse and inventory management.

We also are integrating Group company systems. As a result,
the Kanamoto Group will be able to minimize the differences
in utilization ratios between slow periods and peak demand
seasons, achieve relative improvement in utilization ratios
and raise rental revenues, and improve profit margins by
realizing a permanent cost reduction.

Enhancement of information systems to boost
operating efficiency

The Company was an industry pioneer in creating an online
network in 1985 linking all its branches. In 2004, we com-
pleted the migration of all mission-critical systems from a
mainframe to an open system and realized greater efficien-
cyin all of our internal operations, from managing our rental
asset inventory to performing maintenance and regular in-
spections, accounting treatment and credit management,
plus the selection of models for next-period introduction.
Providing “therightequipment”at “therighttime”andin
“the right quantity” can be said to be the foundation
of equipment rentals, and Kanamoto’s online system
makes it possible. Not only does our online system en-
sure smooth equipment delivery and pickup, it contrib-
utes significantly to the formation of a product lineup
that meets customers’ needs.

Kanamoto will continue its efforts to develop “IT gover-
nance,” and work to further increase the efficiency of internal
operations, while aggressively pursuing the development of
proprietary systems in the future.

[ UHDEBRTLGUNXE TS Y b 74— LELTWebN—RDA— TR LR
The Company has adopted a web-based open system built on a UNIX platform for its
mission-critical systems
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As a good corporate citizen coexisting with society, Kanamoto seeks to be a firm entrusted
with the future while positioning CSR activities as the foundation of its management.

Overview of CSR at Kanamoto

The Kanamoto Group conducts its business activities with the goal of being a firm entrusted with society’s
future as a corporate citizen coexisting with society. Currently these business activities are being accomplished
with the support of many stakeholders, beginning with our shareholders and investors but also encompassing
groups as diverse as our customers, employees and local communities, while showing growth overseas. We
believe that building a deep relationship of trust with stakeholders, supported by proper corporate activities, is
indispensable for accomplishing our mission and achieving sustainable growth. The Company has positioned
CSR (Corporate Social Responsibility) at the heart of its corporate management and is committed to its practice.

Working to further improve corporate value under the simple yet strong philosophy of
“contribute to society”

The foundation for a relationship of trust with stakeholders is formed by the fundamental corporate activi-
ties demanded by society, including compliance, corporate governance and disclosure. For the Company,
these are nothing new. That's because our business operations have always assumed “contributing to
society through equitable and appropriate corporate activities” as a starting point, and we have always
conducted our business with this firmly in mind. Our approach to environmental protection has been the
same, and we have always promoted this policy proactively through actions such as the early introduction
of equipment models that meet anti-pollution statutes.

Together with the creation of earnings, which is our intrinsic purpose as a firm, we will continue devot-
ing ourselves to fulfilling our social responsibilities and further increasing our corporate value in the future,
through systematic CSR activities at every company of the Kanamoto Group.
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System for ensuring directors and employees comply with laws
and the Articles of Incorporation in the execution of their duties
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Kanamoto Company, Ltd. and its subsidiary companies have
prepared Ethics Guidelines as their corporate philosophy, which
they use as a company standard concerning compliance. Under
the Compliance Committee chaired by Kanamoto's president,
the Company has disseminated these Guidelines throughout
the Company and established a system for compliance with
laws and the Guidelines, and has prepared a handbook sum-
marizing Kanamoto's corporate philosophy and employee con-
duct standards, which it distributes to all executives and regular
employees to increase compliance awareness. As a consultation
and reporting system, Kanamoto also has set up in-house and
external compliance hotlines and created a system to resolve
problems quickly when consultations or reports are received
directly from employees and other individuals, while strictly ob-
serving confidentiality and ensuring the individuals who report
problems do not suffer any disadvantages. In addition, the Com-
pany has established a Legal Section reporting directly to the
president, which acts as an advisory panel for important legal
issues and enables the Company to give proper legal consider-
ation to all decision making.

System for ensuring efficient execution of directors’ duties

In addition to their regularly scheduled Board of Directors meet-
ings, Kanamoto and its subsidiary companies hold extraordinary
board meetings when necessary to decide important matters
and make flexible decisions concerning the execution and super-
vision of management strategies and the Company’s business
plans. The Board of Directors receives reports on the financial
condition and other important matters of the subsidiary com-
panies. For its business plan, the Company establishes budgets
for the next business fiscal year and medium-term future, which
provide the managers of each division with Kanamoto's overall
objectives based on specific numerical targets. Each division sets
division-wide objectives and executes progress management
and specific measures aimed at achieving its goals. Kanamoto
also has introduced a corporate officer system to accelerate man-
agement decision making and clarify supervisory authority and
responsibility for plan execution, and each corporate officer is re-
sponsible for achieving the business plan approved by the Board
of Directors. To respond quickly to the severe pace of change in
its management environment, the Company also has shortened
the directors’ term of office to one year.
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Kanamoto’s corporate governance organization
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(EF#1T)  (Execution of activities) i - onsultation and Advice
HATHRE  Corporate officers ‘—}( EBRIFFEEL  Advising attorney )
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% HHPT Operating divisions Consultati}(()n gjrj1d Advice
SHMERBBHEFIATLOREEEER Enhancement and operation of a company-wide
‘s _ . . | PN internal control system
UH T, BECEAEFEERIETRADOEELFE, y
YTENN N To respond appropriately and implement measures to prevent
ERIERETERNDE LB E DB G S E BHRE pond appropriately P p

arecurrence if unforeseen circumstances that will have a serious
effect on Company operations have occurred or might occur,

st (O Y NI E S =5 0N gt W0 | 7 G DR 7% %

V=TIV IERELTVET, IN50ES % —EHR the Company has prepared an Emergency Response Manual
BT 2. [NERFIEREHIE ZAREE L. &t (Contingency Plan). One measure for further clarifying these ac-
BELER—HEESTRYBATNET, tivities is Kanamoto's “internal controls reporting system,” which
e, BRI - 2B T O DELETEE a'II of the Company’s employegs have been umteq in supporting
_ - . O . s . since the system was placed into full-scale operation.
IR, NEMHIERRICLDIES - ART/OT 5 L% To ensure the effectiveness of Kanamoto's company-wide in-
HHOBXRFATRELTVSRIED, TIL—ThRICEWNT ternal controls and each activity process, guidance and training
EERDORERREI DR - EREHELTVET, programs are conducted at the Company’s offices by the Inter-

nal Control and Auditing Office, and internal controls similar to
Kanamoto's are also established and put into operation at Kana-
moto Group companies.

WEMHRIBERICL2IEE - HE DY S LOKT
Instruction and training program conducted by the Internal Control and Auditing Office
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system for its IR website
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Kanamoto employs a robust information security

https://www.kanamoto.ne.jp

The Company has always practiced fair, highly transparent and
prompt information disclosure. To release information on a
timely basis, Kanamoto posts information on the Tokyo Stock Ex-
change TDnet system, while also reporting it promptly on Kana-
moto’s website, where English translations of the documents
disclosing the information are also made available. All materials
providing information about the Company and the Kanamoto
Group, including videos of the Company’s financial statement
briefings and briefing materials distributed to participants, the
Kanamoto Examiner issued quarterly to shareholders, and the
Annual Report, can be viewed on the Company's website.
Kanamoto also considers direct conversations with its stakehold-
ers to be an important aspect of its disclosure efforts. Kanamoto
actively exhibits at IR events, including the Tokyo Stock Exchange
IR Fair for individual investors, Sapporo Securities Exchange
individual investor briefing meetings, and the Nikkei IR Fair for
individual investors, and holds company briefings throughout
Japan each year. Kanamoto also holds quarterly briefings with
securities analysts and domestic institutional investors, and de-
votes efforts to implementing IR activities overseas.

Bolster proper control and security of personal information

The Company handles a vast amount of personal information
pertaining to suppliers and customers, shareholders and inves-
tors and other stakeholders. Accordingly, the Company formu-
lated a Privacy Policy (Personal Information Protection Policy) to
ensure appropriate management of this data. We also have a
reliable system in place for responses and countermeasures in
the event personal data is leaked outside the Company.

One example of Kanamoto's commitment to personal data
protection is its use of the latest encryption technologies to
strengthen Internet security and protect information sent to in-
dividuals making inquiries via the Company’s website.
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Measures to upgrade safety and health systems
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One effort the Company has strengthened is safety training, and
we have created a system for preventing worker accidents that
is spearheaded by the Safety and Health Office, which reports
to the company president. This body regularly implements in-
house training courses and audits, and works to raise safety and
health awareness, covering all of Kanamoto's offices in combina-
tion with the safety patrols operated by the safety and health
working groups. These activities to strengthen Kanamoto's
safety and health systems and eliminate accidents have proven
successful, and as a result, the number of branches that have
achieved a zero accident rate for a continuous period of at least
20 years has increased to 20 branches.

Emphasizing personnel training for Kanamoto's future

The Company considers well-trained personnel who possess
high-level knowledge and skills to be the force driving sustained
growth. Kanamoto therefore has created an organization that en-
courages and nurtures the capabilities of each employee to the
maximum extent, by implementing personnel training and de-
velopment programs attuned to individuals with management
duties and those responsible for maintenance and repairs.

Given the need for employees to have numerous qualifications
for technical work and maintenance and repairs in particular,
Kanamoto works diligently to train individuals engaged in these
areas. In addition to providing in-house maintenance and repair
training, Kanamoto has expanded its training system to support
the acquisition of maintenance technology through participation
in manufacturer-sponsored maintenance and repair training, and
encourages employees to obtain advanced qualifications.

Number of Repair Qualified Technicians and Operation Qualified Technicians (As of February 2018)

=g

Qualification

Number of individuals

iR AR AT (Rl
B AL (1))

Construction Equipment Repair Technician (Expert)
Construction Equipment Repair Technician (First Class)

15
229

455 HRBHERHEOET

In-house maintenance and repair course

% _|§’ R E AR AL Q) Construction Equipment Repair Technician (Second Class)
Erd §_ 2. ARHEBHREERITE Portable Generator Repair Technician 474
% 2.0 BEHERET Automobile Repair Technician 498
g o % AR BEREE Gas Welding Technician 708
% YR mgsAEEEaE Organic Solvent Work Manager 289
fERREREEE Hazardous Materials Handling Manager 355
RiEEEa Vocational Training Instructor 20
. ) ERRERRERE Vehicle-type Construction Equipment Operator 3,629
% 22 BEXIL—VEERE Mobile Crane Operator 1,850
B ;5' §' KB (FF5%) o5 Large-scale Equipment (Special) Operating License 473
BE SO EhiriaeE Sling Crane Technician 807
E 2 % TA—7) 7T NEEE Forklift Operator 620
S IaN)VO—42FEEinE 18

Shovel Loader Operator

HERERIIENAZTYT  Note: Number of qualifications held is total man-qualifications.
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Greater equipment rental use is linked directly with the
preservation of our environment

Rental is a service that enables customers to use equipment
through “time sharing.” So we might say rental is an
environmentally-friendly business, because the more
rentals are used, the more effective the use of a resource.
Consequently, rental equipment is linked to energy savings
and resource conservation by society, and can be viewed as
one solution to environmental problems.

To help more people gain better insight into these
environmental efforts by the Company and see how
Kanamoto's businesses are environmentally friendly,
Kanamoto participates actively in various environmental
events throughout Japan with environmental action and
ecology themes.

Responding to needs and shifting assets compatible
with environmental conservation

At Kanamoto, we view consideration of the global
environment as an important obligation for fulfilling our
social responsibilities as a corporation. For many years, the
Company has been implementing a systematic shift of
rental assets to models that clear anti-pollution statutes for
exhaust gases, noise and other emissions. As a result, today
nearly all of the Company’s rental construction equipment
portfolio consists of the latest environmentally-friendly
models that clear anti-pollution regulations.

The Company will fulfill its responsibility to protect the
environment even as we meet user needs. This is just
one part of Kanamoto's green actions. In the years ahead,
Kanamoto will actively continue to upgrade its inventory to
equipment that utilizes “green technologies.”

Aggressive introduction of fuel-efficient, low-emission
vehicles, even for corporate automobiles

The Company has actively introduced automobiles certified
as fuel-efficient, low-emission vehicles for its own fleet, in
addition to our inventory of rental construction equipment.
Kanamoto selected hybrid automobiles as its corporate
vehicles soon after the start of mass production in 1998.
Since then we have continued to upgrade our fleet to these
and other fuel-efficient, low-emission vehicles.
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Electric vehicle

LED/ N 71— 23R
LED battery floodlight

4 RPEA AR SO BIERR S R DR
Super-low noise construction equipment and models
that comply with Tier 4 emissions regulations

NATVY RSy
Hybrid trucks
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The Company’s fundamental branch strategy is to develop bas-
es by emphasizing demand-based needs, including large-scale
projects in various regions, while positioning branch develop-
ment in the Tokyo Metropolitan Area, where both public and
private sector demand is concentrated, and in other major urban
centers where there remains room for growth, at the center of
its expansion strategy. Kanamoto will further build its enhanced
branch network by continuing to develop branches whose fu-
ture effectiveness can be ascertained and pursuing a strategy of
friendly business alliances and M&A with leading regional firms.

Overseas branch formation

Kanamoto has opened offices in Shanghai, Hong Kong, and
Singapore, and has steadily established bases of operations in
other countries while responding to large-scale projects fo-
cused mainly on infrastructure construction, such as express-
ways, subways, and ports, being developed in each country.
In 2015 we established overseas affiliates in Indonesia, Vietnam,
Thailand, and the Philippines, to further accelerate Kanamoto's
overseas activities. In addition, in 2017 we opened a new com-
pany in Shanghai, where we began sales activities aimed at serv-
ing the huge construction equipment rental demand in China.
This effort to expand our overseas operations centered on
the giant market in China and the remarkably developing
ASEAN countries is one of the Kanamoto Group’s most im-
portant measures. In each country, we anticipate demand
for specialized equipment for engineering works such as
ground improvement and the shield tunneling method,
and for equipment for high-level work, sectors in which the
Kanamoto Group possesses unique expertise. Kanamoto will
continue to lay a solid foundation for accurately addressing
these large-scale needs through its business operations and
pushing into overseas markets in the future.

A (f£) ENMFLOIERGCHEAINS St iEh
Kanamoto construction equipment being used at
worksites in Thailand (left) and Vietnam



Branch Network

AFERTSATVRTIV—TEERITVUTRIRER (20185 2 BIRTE)
Kanamoto and Group company operating branches in Japan (as of February 2018)

w EE TR IBEREFRAT S 7, 7 4EHEA =
v Subsidiaries Subsidiaries P
Jti#E®E  Hokkaido 67 22 0 5 94
® 4t Tohoku 55 1 4 4 74
B & Kanto 36 24 31 5 96
S & # Chubu 22 8 2 6 38
% 2 O & Kk 6 24 1 8 39
3 # Chugoku 2 11 0 0 13
| Shikoku 2 1 0 0 3
A M Kyushu 0 96 1 2 99
H #&  Okinawa 0 0 0 13 13
== S| China 0 2 3 0 5
Y VHR=Il Singapore 0 0 1 0 1
B % AV R%27  Indonesia 0 0 1 0 1
% & & o Thailand 0 0 2 0 2
T41)E>  Philippines 0 0 1 0 1
ANhk+ Lo Vietham 0 0 3 0 3
& &t Total 190 199 50 43 482

{cqnqmoto ALLIANCE GROUP

HFENTSA47VRY)IV—7  Kanamoto Alliance Group

kqnqmoto HXEHHTES

BREAZ-7ER
Eiwashoukai Co., Ltd.

HRARHAAL VRV IR
Asahi Rentax Co., Ltd.

WRIVIZTIVY
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Kanamoto Co,, Ltd. @ xz UEE

#HRaH
5 WALV EY IR

ANSINT

BREHT VRS
Assist Co., Ltd.

Oy 79
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Carewell Anshin Co,, Ltd.,

ARt
TOYU ENGINEERING CO, LTD.

[T IZTIY

- HREMHTFTVY - MRARHKGTO—T5/ e il 1y B
#rREt KGIO—59) BIETVIZFUVT HA&E
K A N A T 4 [ H Kanatech Co.,, Ltd. ﬁf KG Flowtechno Co., Ltd. | MEIGI] MEIGI ENGINEERING CO,LTD.
- ~ " FHER (PE) REBRAA KNK
"M KANKI 5 kanamoto (chind)  anamoto (China) )N( MACHINERY&EQUIPMENT
anki Co,, Ltd. investmentco.,ltd. |nvestment Co. Ltd. i B o CORPORATION

IR NN . L. 2 (EE BRRE FECON FECON UNDERGROUND
/A.msm TWHEE Kyus;:u Kensan Co., Ltd. EREHFRAE  KANAMOTO (HK) UNDERGROUND CONSTRUCTION JSC

BHEEGRRYE EERTENEEEERAR BRI AER

et leqm N o — A \ e
—m Daiichi Kikaisangyo . EEFTEIMIRESBRAE  Shanghai KG N Komatsu Doboku

@ % E¥ Co., Ltd. P ehorshol Mach?nery Co., Ltd. m J *’Ai*ﬁﬁ Tsusyo Co., Ltd.
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=rF FETEMARA HRASHILY TS
L HGFLR 1oy0industy Co, Led H:h HASSYU CONSTRUCTION (o m S UPPIY  ComsupplyCo, Ltd
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\ - i San=> ay 2 = kanamoto & JPNels&n  Kanamoto & JP Nelson : SEUGAKIKAI KOGYO
(D Nl SHl KEN NISHIKEN CO., LTD. # EQUIPMENT (S)PTE. LTD- £ ipment (S) PTE. Ltd. S—XL,LEA CO, LTD.
A MER R ) ETEM T 4t
EeLLL LR = Unite Co,, Ltd. E\‘%noq,\"‘gg? Fanamoto Indonesia % 1) Em I Machida Kikou Co., Ltd.
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o‘ o] 2k XA Siam kanamoto co.lto.  S|AM KANAMOTO
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AFERNTSATIRITIN—-TDERURISEN469HLA. BHAHLEDE D E£482Hm

The Kanamoto alliance group comprises 482 branches and offices,
including 13 offices overseas and 469 branches and offices throughout Japan
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Kanamoto’s branch network continues to grow.
The Company is expanding and enlarging its base of

operations domestically and

3 e D

overseas.

(BR) 77/ AR eeseeeces Assist Co., Ltd.

(#) BFTv% <+« <+« Kanatech Co., Ltd.

(¥R) 73> <+ +e+=+< Kanki Co., Ltd.

(¥) FUMNEREE -« <+« - Kyusyu Kensan Co., Ltd.
BE—ISMESE (%) - - Daiichi Kikaisangyo Co., Ltd.
BGETE (#) «++---- Toyo Industry Co., Ltd.

(¥k) =</%>/ ++ =+« NISHIKEN CO., LTD.

3F A~ #R) ++++++++ Unite Co,, Ltd.

LiEeMFEERTEARAR
Shanghai Jinheyuan Engineering Construction Co., Ltd.

SR

sia1jddng

M HitAlt jjj'f" kcanamoto co., lItd.
e = D

~a

(B)XT—7E +oeseceeeeeececes Eiwashoukai Co., Ltd.

TTITIVRID (BR) eovecececcccees Carewell Anshin Co., Ltd.,
(BRKGTO—TT/ secececcececes KG Flowtechno Co., Ltd.

LEAENMIEEZHERAR --- Shanghai KG Machinery Co., Ltd.
FECON UNDERGROUND CONSTRUCTION JSC
KMER (PE) RFERAF -+« - Kanamoto (China) Investment Co,, Ltd.
X (FH)BRAF ceceeecee-+« KANAMOTO (HK) CO., LTD.
KANAMOTO FECON HASSYU CONSTRUCTION EQUIPMENT RENTAL JSC
Kanamoto & JP Nelson Equipment (S) PTE. Ltd.
L KNK MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT CORPORATION
PT Kanamoto Indonesia
SIAM KANAMOTO CO., LTD.
(BR)BAEL Ry IR ceveccecceces Asahi Rentax Co., Ltd.
RRIVIZT1)2% (#) «+e++++++ TOYU ENGINEERING CO., LTD.
ZIH T =771)2% (%) +«++++++ MEIGI ENGINEERING CO.,LTD.

S19W0)SND SBISIBA0 PUe JNSawlo(] —¢—|J$\ﬂ}f . E-E

v,

GE1) IFEEFAURUBESHIN L THDEGERLTEYE A,
GE2) WEL>RIL - H—ERDRM, HROREERLET,
(¥3) BRIGEETFRM. BEIIBEETFAY. BREEBERHERLET,

(Note 1) There are no non-consolidated subsidiaries or affiliated companies to which equity method
accounting is applied.

(Note 2) Arrows (=) indicate the provision of rental services and sales of products.

(Note 3) Consolidated subsidiaries indicated in blue, non-consolidated subsidiaries indicated in red, affiliated

companies indicated in green,

BREHTVRE (134k5)
HBHESR - RRAKEOL VAL - BEEEBLTVET,

M Assist Co., Ltd. (13 branches)
- Engaged in the rental and sale of furniture, fixtures and
safety products.

#Xatho+ (1045)
BRIHOL 2L - 5 BELTOET,

Kanki Co., Ltd. (10 branches)
Engaged in the rental and sale of construction equipment.

FmmERGNa (126L)
REBBHOL 2L - HAREBRELTVET,

Daiichi Kikaisangyo Co., Ltd. (12 branches)
Engaged in the rental and sale of construction equipment.

BRet=r> (81l5)
 BEREROL 2L - lRFEDIEDN BUNEREDL R -
A BRR AA—TI ST I ADHUE - ETERBELTVET,

NISHIKEN CO., LTD. (81 branches)

Engaged in the rental and sale of construction equipment,
rental and sale of welfare nursing care devices, and
production and execution of image graphics.
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#RahF7v7 (1585)
REBI=Y b\ ZDRE - BRFEERELTOET.

Kanatech Co., Ltd. (15 branches)
Engaged in the design and sale of modular housing units for
temporary use.

HREHAMRE (1680)
HERNE TN ETHRBBAOL > 2 ) - RFERILT
VET,

Kyushu Kensan Co., Ltd. (16 branches)
Engaged in the rental and sale of construction equipment,
with a primary emphasis on foundation equipment.

REIEBASH D)
. Y-V ITEBEORDEBOL V2V - REZEBRELT
V&Y,

Toyo Industry Co., Ltd. (3 branches)
Engaged in the rental and sale of shield tunneling method-
related peripheral equipment.

27/ MR EH (78LR)
EEEEOL V2L - Bt BRTEBTZRMLTVET,

Unite Co., Ltd. (47 branches)
Engaged in the rental and sale of road construction
equipment and road works construction.



Alliances and Associates

Lis@MEERTEFRLE (2 #1<)
rhEE\RAFE EETHICB UV CGRRROL > 20 - fRst. 5%
BEMOBHAEEEZRRALTCVET,

Shanghai Jinheyuan Engineering Construction Co., Ltd.
(2 branches)

Engaged in the rental and sale of construction equipment and
the import and export of construction materials in Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China.

TTIoTVRLGHHREH (268L:3)
NEABRDOL VRV - fi5E NET—EXZRBLTVET,

Carewell Anshin Co., Ltd., (26 branches)
Engaged in the rental and sale of nursing care products and
nursing care services.

+9En (RE) RRFRAF (18085
EARLME LEHICHE O TRRBAOL > 2)b-R55%
BELTLET,

Kanamoto (China) Investment Co., Ltd.

(1 branch)

Engaged in the rental and sale of construction equipment in
Shanghai, People’s Republic of China.

LRTENMRERRAT (1#l3)
FEARHNE LBHICEVTRBERESRHE O/ T TEAR
REIRDL 20, REt - BEZEERRLTVET,

Shanghai KG Machinery Co., Ltd. (1 branch)

. Engaged in development of a construction equipment rental

business and construction equipment and construction
materials import and export business in Shanghai, People’s
Republic of China.

Kanamoto & JP Nelson Equipment (S) PTE. Ltd.
(1#253)

IYAR—IVHEICE WVTEAREFHERDOL > 2L - IR
Foo AVHITAVTEITOTVET,

Kanamoto & JP Nelson Equipment (S) PTE. Ltd.

(1 branch)

Engaged in the rental and sale of specialized engineering
works equipment and consulting in the Republic of Singapore.

SIAM KANAMOTO CO., LTD. (2 #ks3)
LA EBICHVTERBHOL > 2)) - lRFeZERLTVEY,

SIAM KANAMOTO CO., LTD. (2 branches)
Engaged in the rental and sale of construction equipment in
the Kingdom of Thailand.

RRIVIZTIVIHA&it (4Hls)
FRIVIEEBREMOL 2L - RFEZRALTOET,

TOYU ENGINEERING CO., LTD. (4 branches)
Engaged in the rental and sale of specialized equipment for
tunneling works.

KNK MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT CORPORATION
(14ik5)

TAVEVHMEICEWTEREROL 2L - BRFczERL
TWEY,

KNK MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT CORPORATION

(1 branch)

Engaged in the rental and sale of construction equipment in
the Republic of the Philippines.

HRS ML AER (487)
EREIWDOL >RV -BRFEEBALTWE S,

Komatsu Doboku Tsusho Co., Ltd. (4 branches)
Engaged in the rental and sale of construction equipment.

ERATI RGNS (1785)
EREIHDOL V2L - lRFeERBELTVET,

SUGAKIKAI KOGYO CO., LTD. (17 branches)
Engaged in the rental and sale of construction equipment.

ARSHZ-7ES (18R)
NANEBEREROL > 2V ERFLTVEY,

Eiwashoukai Co., Ltd. (1 branch)
Engaged in the rental and sale of small-scale construction
equipment for general use.

#HXeHKGTO—-T5/ (2#k)
AR TR-P TGRSR EICR B E N H D
L)L - et RERTERBEL TV E Y,

KG Flowtechno Co., Ltd. (2 branches)

Developing a business in the rental and design, manufacture
and sale of specialized equipment used for projects such as
ground improvement work and the construction of
underground structures.

&F (F8) ARAF (1#)
PEARHMEEBFHTEREICEVTEEL 2L B
- RV OB AEEEZRELTVEY,

KANAMOTO (HK) CO., LTD. (1 branch)

Engaged in development of a construction equipment rental
business and construction equipment and construction
materials import and export business in the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region in the People’s Republic of China.

KANAMOTO FECON HASSYU CONSTRUCTION EQUIPMENT
RENTALJSC (2#ik53)
AN LHRFERHAEICB O TERBEHOL V2L - BR5E. £

y  REHEHOL 2L - RS IV YIVTA T 'TOTVET,

KANAMOTO FECON HASSYU CONSTRUCTION
EQUIPMENT RENTAL JSC (2 branches)

Engaged in the rental and sale of construction equipment, rental and sale of specialized
engineering works equipment and consulting in the Socialist Republic of Viet Nam.

PT Kanamoto Indonesia (1 #1:)
AV RRITHMEY v+ HIVRITE W TEREH DS AIRTE
ETO>TVEY.

PT Kanamoto Indonesia (1 branch)
Engaged in the import and sale of construction equipment in
Jakarta, Republic of Indonesia.

HRSHBALZvIZ (4HL)
frasfEm - REARFOL >R - RFEZERLTVED,

Asahi Rentax Co., Ltd. (4 branches)
Engaged in the rental and sale of furniture, fixtures and safety
products.

BFTIIZTIVTHR R (288:R)
WERFIAVIU— T TV bORE - BE - L2IL - i3S
ERBLTVET,

MEIGI ENGINEERING CO.,LTD. (2 branches)
Engaged in the design, manufacture, rental and sale of
shotcrete plants.

FECON UNDERGROUND CONSTRUCTION JSC

(FECON UCC) (1#8=%)

AN FLHREBHAMENCH OV TRHRENZE BV EHLA GTT
F). BPGRA VTS TE TBEYURDERNFESFILLTVET,
FECON UNDERGROUND CONSTRUCTION JSC

(FECON UCC) (1 branch)

Specializes in construction field of urban underground
construction, technical infrastructure and soil improvement
by special technologies in the Socialist Republic of Viet Nam.

HRBHAALYTS1 (9#L)
fragfEm - BRARKREMOL 2V - RFEZBRELTL
EED

Comsupply Co., Ltd. (9 branches)
Engaged in the rental of safety products for the construction
industry.

ETEIE TS (134L:3)
EREHDOL V2L - lRFeZRBELTVET,

Machida Kikou Co., Ltd. (13 branches)
Engaged in the rental and sale of construction equipment.
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Items in black are business development
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BXF  MISERICEIT B Items in Color are financial information

Kanamoto Shoten Co,, Ltd. established (Reorganization in Muroran, Hokkaido)
Zenchu Kanamoto appointed President and Representative Director, and Taichu Kanamoto
appointed Executive Director

Began development of sales branch network. Tomakomai Sub-branch (now the Tomakomai
Branch) established

Company name changed to Kanamoto Co,, Ltd.

Former headquarters building (Muroran) completed

Advanced into Aomori Prefecture and established the Hachinohe Branch (now the
Hachinohe Equipment Repair Center), Kanamoto's first branch outside Hokkaido

Implemented issuance of new shares by third party allocation; Orient Lease (now ORIX
Corporation) and The Hokkaido Takushoku Bank take capital participations

Taichu Kanamoto appointed President and Representative Director

Established Chiba Branch (now the Sodegaura Branch) as Kanamoto's first foothold in the
Kanto Region

Launched Computer and Peripheral Equipment Division (Tomakomai, Hokkaido)

Relocated the Computer and Peripheral Equipment Division (Bunkyo Ward, Tokyo)

Established the Construction Equipment Rental Division Tokyo Office (Bunkyo Ward, Tokyo)

Completed online computer system network linking all branches

Branches located in all regions of Hokkaido

Listed stock on the Sapporo Securities Exchange

Issued Swiss franc-denominated warrants (SFr60 million)

Established Mikawa Branch as Kanamoto's first foothold in the Tokai Region

Began conducting overseas IR briefings

Established Osaka Branch (now the Osaka Higashi Branch) as Kanamoto's first foothold in
the Kinki Region

Issued Swiss franc-denominated convertible bonds (SFr100 million)

Designated as a loan transaction stock for the Sapporo Stock Exchange

Listed stock on the Second Section of the Tokyo Stock Exchange

Relocated head office functions to Sapporo, Chuo Ward

Issued first unsecured convertible bonds (¥10 billion)

Designated as a stock for margin trading on the Tokyo Stock Exchange

Issued Eurodollar-denominated straight corporate bonds (US$42million)

Introduced stock option program

Stock elevated to the First Section of the Tokyo Stock Exchange

Kanchu Kanamoto appointed President and Representative Director, and
Taichu Kanamoto appointed Chairman of the Board and Representative Director

Honored by the Tokyo Stock Exchange with the Commendation Award for Listed
Companies, for more than five consecutive years of annual dividend increases following
listing on the Exchange

Acquired stock of Assist Co,, Ltd. (now a consolidated subsidiary)

Established SRG Kanamoto Co,, Ltd

Issued Alpine-yen denominated ¥5 billion zero-coupon bond (Switzerland)

Completed construction on the Kanamoto Hamamatsucho K Building

Concluded alliance with Machida Kikou Co,, Ltd

Acquired stock of Kanatech Co,, Ltd. (now a consolidated subsidiary)

Acquired stock of Daiichi Kikaisangyo Co., Ltd. (now a consolidated subsidiary)
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Kanamoto honored with the IR Excellent Firm Award from the Japan Association for
Individual Investors (JAIl) (fourth company to receive the award)

Established Takamatsu Branch in Takamatsu City, Kagawa Prefecture and began branch
development in Shikoku

Acquired stock of Kanki Co., Ltd. (now a consolidated subsidiary)

Acquired stock of Kyushu Kensan Co., Ltd. (now a consolidated subsidiary)

Established Hiroshima Branch in Asaminami-ku, Hiroshima and began branch development
in the Chugoku Region

Introduced special benefits plan for shareholders

Acquired stock of Toyo Industry Co,, Ltd. (now a consolidated subsidiary)

Acquired stock of KG Machinery Co, Ltd.
(now KG Flowtechno Co,, Ltd., a non-consolidated subsidiary)

Established Shanghai Jinheyuan Engineering Construction Co., Ltd. (now a consolidated
subsidiary) in Shanghai, China through a joint investment with Shanghai Jinheyuan
International Trading Co, Ltd. (now Shanghai Jinheyuan Group Co,, Ltd.) and ORIX Corporation

Established KANAMOTO (HK) CO., LTD. (now a non-consolidated subsidiary) in Hong Kong,
China

Established Kanamoto & JP Nelson Equipment(S) PTE. Ltd. (now a non-consolidated
subsidiary) in Singapore through a joint investment with JP Nelson Equipment PTE. Ltd.

Concluded alliance with SUGAKIKAI KOGYO CO., LTD.

Concluded alliance with Komatsu Doboku Tsusho Co., Ltd.

Acquired stock of Unite Co., Ltd. (now a consolidated subsidiary)

Increased capital through public offering (2.8 million shares)

Increased capital by way of third-party allotment (420,000 shares)

Changed stock trading unit size from 1,000 shares to 100 shares

KG Flowtechno Co., Ltd. established Shanghai KG Machinery Co., Ltd. (now a non-
consolidated subsidiary) in Shanghai, China

Acquired stock of Asahi Rentax Co,, Ltd. (now an associated company)

50th anniversary of Kanamoto's establishment

PT Kanamoto Indonesia (now a non-consolidated subsidiary), established in Indonesia,
began operations

Established KANAMOTO FECON HASSYU CONSTRUCTION EQUIPMENT RENTAL JSC
(now a non-consolidated subsidiary) in Vietnam through a joint investment with
FECON HASSYU and began operations

SIAM KANAMOTO CO., LTD. (now a non-consolidated subsidiary), established in
Thailand, began operations

Acquired stock of Eiwashoukai Co,, Ltd. (now a non-consolidated subsidiary)

Kanamoto's stock selected as a component issue for the JPX-Nikkei Index 400

KNK MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT CORPORATION (now an associated company), established
in the Philippines by Kanamoto & JP Nelson Equipment (S) PTE. Ltd. through a joint
investment with KILTON INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS CO., INC,, began operations

Acquired stock of NISHIKEN CO,, LTD. (now a consolidated subsidiary)

Stock selected as a component issue for the JPX-Nikkei Index 400

Concluded sponsorship agreement with the 2017 Sapporo Asian Winter Games

Tetsuo Kanamoto appointed President and Representative Director, and Kanchu
Kanamoto appointed Chairman of the Board and Representative Director

Stock selected as a constituent issue of the JPX-Nikkei Mid and Small Cap Index

Acquired stock of TOYU ENGINEERING CO., LTD. (now an associated company) and
MEIGI ENGINEERING CO.,LTD. (now an associated company)

Stock selected as a component issue for the JPX-Nikkei Index 400

Kanamoto (China) Investment Co,, Ltd. (now a non-consolidated subsidiary), established in
Shanghai, China, began operations

NISHIKEN CO,, LTD. acquired stock of Carewell Anshin Co,, Ltd. (now a non-consolidated
subsidiary)
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Company Name

lkcanamoto co., ltd.

Head Office
1-19, Odori Higashi 3-chome Chuo-ku,
Sapporo, Hokkaido 060-0041 Japan

Business Coordination Headquarters
1-7-7, Shiba Daimon, Minato-ku, Tokyo
105-0012 Japan

Established
October 28, 1964

Capitalization
¥183,652 million (Paid-in capital)

Listing Exchanges
Tokyo Stock Exchange, First Section
Sapporo Securities Exchange

Stock Code
9678

Common Shares Issued and Outstanding
36,092 thousand

Consolidated Net Sales
¥158,428 million
(Fiscal year ended October 31, 2017)

Number of Consolidated Employees
3,038 (Excluding directors and temporary
or part-time workers)
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Principal Businesses

Rental of construction equipment

Sale of steel products

Rental of engineering workstations and
computer peripherals

Primary Lenders

The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd.
Mizuho Bank, Ltd.

Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and Banking
Corporation

North Pacific Bank, Ltd.

The Hokkaido Bank, Ltd.

The 77 Bank, Ltd.

JA HOKKAIDO SHINREN

The Norinchukin Bank

The Daishi Bank, Ltd.

The Aomori Bank, Ltd.

Others

Principal Shareholders

Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd.
ORIX Corporation

The Master Trust Bank of Japan, Ltd.
Komatsu Construction Equipment Sale
and Service Japan Ltd.

Kanamoto Capital Company

The Hokkaido Bank, Ltd.

Tokio Marine & Nichido Fire Insurance Co., Ltd.
North Pacific Bank, LTD.

Denyo Co., Ltd.

HOKUETSU INDUSTRIES CO.,LTD.
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Primary Customers (Alphabetic order)
AICHI CORPORATION

Caterpillar Japan Ltd.

Denyo Co., Ltd.

Fudo Tetra Corporation

HANWA CO., LTD.

Hino Motors, Ltd.

HOKUETSU INDUSTRIES CO., LTD.
Isuzu Motors Limited

[TOCHU CONSTRUCTION MACHINERY CO., LTD.
ITOCHU Corporation

KAJIMA CORPORATION

KATO CONSTRUCTION CO., LTD.

Komatsu Construction Equipment

Sale and Service Japan Ltd.

MAEDA CORPORATION

Mitsubishi Fuso Truck and Bus Corporation
MITSUI & CO., LTD

NISHIMATSU CORPORATION CO., LTD.
OBAYASHI CORPORATION
PENTA-OCEAN CONSTRUCTION CO., LTD.
SAKAI HEAVY INDUSTRIES, LTD.
SHIMIZU CORPORATION

TADANO LTD.

TAISEI CORPORATION

Takenaka Corporation

TOA CORPORATION

TODA CORPORATION

TSURUMI MANUFACTURING CO., LTD.
YANMAR CONSTRUCTION EQUIPMENT CO., LTD.
Others




ﬂﬁ (20174118 1 HIRTE) (As of November 1,2017) Organization Chart I

HEIEs

General Meeting of the Shareholders

B@HRE SETER
Board of Directors Business Administration Division
ES B8 BYR—IR
Business Administration Section, Procurement Section,
Business Support Section

R

iR

President

BEEER
ors
WEZ
Secretary Office
IRERE
Public Relations Office Administration Division

mzﬂgﬁu ; Administration Section, Personnel Section,
APWLIPY o i :

. Facilities Management Section
Internal Control and Auditing Office 9

EHE
Legal Office
REWER
Safety and Health Office
Credit Management Division

BRmRE RAEEER - HER

Business Development Office Credit Management Section, Credit Analysis Section

EEgEngE= B RTLEB

Business Process Reengineering Office Information System Division
VATLYR—IR - YRFLY 21— 3 VR

System Support Section, System Solutions Section

I

Accounting Division
Accounting Section 1, Accounting Section 2,
Treasury & Securities Section

IS »

EEXI

Operations Control Headquarters

BBtz
Bill Collect er

(FLI%E - TR - ABR)
(Sapporo, Tokyo, Osaka)

ERFERT

Business Coordination Headquarters

ERTEE
Business Planning Division

mEFRIEE

Quality Assurance Office

BhEpRE
Affiliated Business Office

hizhREE

Market Development Office

LR IVEEER ARER
Construction Equipment Rental Division ed Products Sales D
SkEMEREER Za1—-7RdIvE
Steel Sales Division New Products Office
1RERIE AR ER
Information Products Division

loTHetEER
BRI

Internet of Things Promotion Section
Overseas Business Division

ANVPEER

Event Marketing Division

i cksio
National Special Demand Sales Division
IR - ISR RER - EBHIER - (LI HEtEER

Ground Improvement Section, Regional Sales Section,
Foundation Equipment Section,

IO ZTIVTER
Specialized Equipment Engineering Division
KALIBER - b RIVER

Water Treatment Machinery Section, Tunnel Machinery Section,

LB

Hokkaido Region
BT Ovy - AT Ay s ERT OvY - BT Oy -
BRTOvY-BETOYY - EETOYY - AEDtE 42— - {RERER
Dohoku Block, Hokumou Block, Dotou Block, Sorachi Block,

Doou Block, Nittan Block, Donan Block, AED Center,
Temporary Scaffolding Division

SRALHE
hoku Region
BEHRIOvY - EFTOV -MEATAVY - E@HTAYY -
i 7avy - @e70vy

Aomori Block, Iwate Block, Akita Block, Miyagi Block,
YYamagata Block, Fukushima Block

RSR Sttt X

Kanto & Koshinetsu Region
R Ovy - BERF IOV - FEIOvY - "RRJOvy -
#HE)BRLRTOyy - FmETOvy
Kitakanto Block, Gunma & Nagano Block, Chiba Block, Tokyo Block,
Kanagawa & Shizuoka & Yamanashi Block, Niigata Block

[i] =k Sules

West Japan Region
eET7 Oy - BE7AvY AT Oy - RERETAYY
Hokuriku Block, Tokai Block, Kinki Block, Chugoku & Shikoku Block

it A

Head Office Business Coordination FUMBX
Headquarters Kyushu Region
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Board of Directors

HU§E1% Directors
- €7 Erh Kanchu Kanamoto

RERFRER

Chairman of the Board and
Representative Director

R {=7F* Hitoshi Narita*

EBER

Division Manager,
Business Administration Division

WEEF &2 * Hiroyuki lsono*

HBEER

MEER

Division Manager, Administration Division
General Manager, Secretary Office

T3 B Naoki Mukunashi*

BNBERR
Division Manager,
Overseas Business Division

A% #E Susumu Naito

£
;
o

&7 BB * Tetsuo Kanamoto* YR {8A Nobuhito Utatsu
RREFRER FHERITRE

EXMEABR R R

President and CEO EREER

Executive Division Manager, Senior Executive Corporate Officer
Business Coordination Headquarters Division Manager, Accounting Division
Representative Director General Manager, Public Relations Office

& EEB* Tatsuo Kanamoto* FEH B— * Masakazu Hirata*

LB IVEEER L2 VERERRIR IR
LB ISR B R
HMEETEE

Deputy Division Manager,
Construction Equipment Rental Division
Division Manager, Used Products Sales

Division Manager,

Construction Equipment Rental Division
Regional Manager of Hokkaido Region
General Manager, Steel Sales Division
RIB 5* Manabu Nagasaki*
P =27 RREEFRAER
President and CEO NISHIKEN.CO.LTD

FREF #8—* Yuichi Asano*
(EEEEER

Division Manager,

Credit Management Division

&0 FNER* Kazunori Hashiguchi*

BERRER
TEIRER R RES

ANV FEEIER
Za—TJnAvYEEE

General Manager,

Business Development Office Governing
Information Products Division,

Event Marketing Division and

New Products Office

Bl H:Z Masayuki Oikawa

K FTas Motoki Yonekawa

AR FEHVERRHTR FEHVERETR
Outside Director Outside Director Outside Director
EH® Auditors
£ R Fichu Kanamoto 1M BEZ Naoyuki Yokota - ¥&Z& BB Akio Hashimoto
BHEER BYEER HANEER
Standing Corporate Auditor Standing Corporate Auditor i Outside Corporate Auditor

it &% Kiyohiro Tsuji

HNBEER
Qutside Corporate Auditor

|

B3 B Akira Naoi
HAEEER
Outside Corporate Auditor

B &5 Koji Soga
HANEEER
Outside Corporate Auditor

BITIRE Corporate Officers
HER & Hiroshi Kumagai

BHATLER
Division Manager,
Information System Division

xh

JEER #h Jun Watanabe

[LESREERRR

Division Manager,
National Special Demand Sales Division

GE1) XENDEGHRIL. BITREZRELTHBIET,

'

& 1& Satoru Toiya JtJIl 8 Ken Kitagawa

L2 VEERHRE BINEEIMBIEETR

() HFRREFRILR PT Kanamoto Indonesia fRREUH &R
Division Manager, Deputy Division Manager,

Construction Equipment Rental Division Overseas Business Division

President and CEO Kanki Co,, Ltd. President and CEO PT Kanamoto Indonesia

1% 155 Nobuyuki Sato
EXCEIR

Division Manager,

Business Planning Division

1. Asterisk indicates directors who hold the additional post of corporate officer.

GE2) B2 T ST BT BEDDHIERH L THY., —LRHEmERIRLTHYET, 2. Only the position titles at Kanamoto are shown, and official positions being performed
(F 3) I RARSE R, BRSO EERIEATRMBEERHELHBYET,
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concurrently have been omitted.

3. Director Naoki Mukunashi and Director Kazunori Hashiguchi are serving concurrently as
Assistant to General Manager, Business Coordination Headquarters.
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Financial Section

Report of Operating Results and Financial Position for the 53rd Business

Period (November 1,2016 — October 31, 2017)

Matters Concerning the Corporate Group

Summary of consolidated fiscal year operating
results

Inthe fiscal year under review, Japan’'s economy
maintained a modest recovery trend, supported by strong
corporate earnings, the recovery of capital investment,
and reasons for optimism in both the employment and
income environments. However, a wariness must remain
in place about uncertainties, such as the economic impact
of unstable political conditions in the US and Europe and
geopolitical risks posed by the Middle East and Asia.

The construction industry, in which the Kanamoto Group
is involved, was solid overall due to robust public sector
investment and a recovery in private-sector construction
investment attributable to improved corporate earnings.
Given these conditions, the Group promoted various
measures with the aim of achieving its Medium-term
Management Plan (fiscal 2014 to fiscal 2016), and worked
to ensure strong future revenue and build a stable
management base. Those measures include strengthening
the business structure by expanding the Group’s business
in urban areas, and the optimal reallocation of rental
equipment and further improvement of such equipment’s
utilization rate.

Consequently, in the fiscal year ended October 31, 2017
net sales rose 9.4% from the prior consolidated fiscal year
level to ¥158,428 million. On the earnings front, operating
profit increased 10.1% year on year to ¥16,665 million
and ordinary profit rose 19.4% to ¥17,193 million. Profit
attributable to owners of parent increased 32.7% over the
prior consolidated fiscal year to ¥10,744 million.

Summary of consolidated operating results by
business segment

Business related to the Construction Equipment
Rental Division

In the construction-related business, which is Kanamoto's
core business, reconstruction demand in the Tohoku

Consolidated Operating Results

Fiscal Year Ending Fiscal Year Ending
October 31,2016  October 31,2017

Region decreased gradually but in other regions, demand
was relatively brisk. Overall, rental demand for construction
equipment was solid. The Group focused its management
resources on supporting reconstruction and recovery
efforts following last year's Kumamoto earthquake and
typhoons in Kagoshima and Hokkaido, as well as this year’s
torrential rain storms throughout Japan, and worked on
building a continual support system.

By region, sales in this business were up 16.7% in the
Hokkaido Region, down 7.7% in the Tohoku Region,
up 7.5% in the Kanto & Koushinetsu Region, up 8.1% in
the Nishi-nihon Region, and up 54.9% in the Kyushu &
Okinawa Region. The inclusion of NISHIKEN CO., LTD. in
the scope of consolidation from the third quarter of the
previous fiscal year and the signs of synergy effects in the
Kyushu Region, including NISHIKEN, led to strong growth
in net sales and operating profit in the Kyushu Region
during the fiscal year.

With regard to sales of used construction equipment, the
Group continued to systematically sell rental equipment
that had been in service for a certain number of years,
in order to maintain an appropriate asset portfolio. Sales
of used construction equipment, included in net sales,
increased 9.1% versus the previous fiscal year.

Reflecting these factors, the Kanamoto Group posted net
sales in the construction-related businesses of ¥142,414
million, an increase of 8.5% year-on-year, and operating
profit of ¥15,415 million, an increase of 9.7%.

Other Businesses

In the Company’s other businesses, sales were steady at
both the Steel Sales Division and the Information Products
Division. Coupled with the addition of NISHIKEN's welfare
related business, this resulted in a 17.2% increase in net
sales from the same period of the prior consolidated fiscal
year to ¥16,013 million and a 29.7% increase in operating
profit to ¥856 million.

Divisional Sales (Consolidated)

Fiscal Year Ending Fiscal Year Ending
October 31,2016  October 31,2017

Net Sales 144,870  (8.7) 158,428 (9.4)

Operating Profit 15,134 (-7.0) 16,665 (10.1)

Ordinary Profit 14,405 (-10.9) 17,193 (19.4)

Profit attributable to

owners of parent 8,098 (-15.3)

10,744 (32.7)

¥229.16 ¥ 304.05

(Millions of yen; % change from prior year)

Net Income per Share
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Construction Equipment
RentaIBusinesg P 131,208 (6.2) 142,414 (8.5)

Other Businesses 13,662 (40.6) 16,013 (17.2)
Total 144,870 (8.7) 158,428 (9.4)

(Millions of yen; % change from prior year)




H Divisional Sales and Sales Ratio (Consolidated)
(Millions of yen; % change from prior year)

FY2015

Net Sales

133,292
6.2%) AW . 92.7%

123,57260%)

Change in number of branches
The Company opened seven new branches and closed

one branch.

New branches: Kuji Branch (Kuji City, lwate Prefecture),
Hidaka Equipment Center (Sarugun, Hokkaido), Kanto
Aerial Work Vehicle Maintenance Center (Wakaba-ku,
Chiba), lida Branch (Shimoina-gun, Nagano Prefecture), Fuiji
Branch (Fuji City, Shizuoka Prefecture), Murakami Branch
(Murakami City, Niigata Prefecture), Komaki Branch (Komaki
City, Aichi Prefecture)

Closed branch: Tsugaru Dam Branch (Nakatsugaru-gun,
Aomori Prefecture)

Outlook for the Next Fiscal Year (Fiscal year
ending October 2018)

In the next fiscal year, the Group expects public
investment and private-sector capital investment to
remain strong. However, the industry faces issues such as
widening regional disparities due to the concentration

FY2016
Net Sales

144,870

(8.7%)

Il Construction Equipment Rental Business

FY2017
Net Sales

158,428

(9.4%)

142,4148.5%)

Il Other Businesses

of construction work in urban areas and changes in the
procurement environment for equipment, materials, and
labor. Given these conditions, the Group will continue to
ensure that it holds the optimal rental equipment and mix
of equipment models aligned to construction demand
and customer needs, while raising operational efficiency
and utilization rates further by operating new systems.
Pursuing these priority measures will enable the Group
to achieve the goals of its long-term vision “BULL 55.” In
addition, Kanamoto aims to further improve its earnings
management and strengthen its corporate governance
system as well as to build a management system that will
facilitate sustainable growth in the long term.

For the fiscal year ending October 31, 2018, the Kanamoto
Group aims for net sales of ¥161,870 million, a growth of
2.2% year-on-year, operating profit of ¥17,330 million, an
increase of 4.0%, ordinary profit of ¥17,420 million, a rise of
1.3%, and profit attributable to owners of parent of ¥10,900
million, an improvement of 1.4%.

Projected Operating Results for the Fiscal Year Ending October 31,2018

Consolidated full-year Non-consolidated

projection full-year projection
Net Sales 161,870 (2.2) 109,670 (2.2)
Operating Profit 17,330 (4.0) —
Ordinary Profit 17,420 (1.3) 12,650 (1.0)
ﬁonfolidatff(jj ; Proflt attributable to owners of parent / 10,900 (1.4) 8,680 (1.5)
on-consolidated : Netincome
Net Income per Share ¥308.44 ¥ 245.62

(Millions of yen; % change from prior year)
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Consolidated Financial Statements

Consolidated Balance Sheets

Prior consolidated

N Current consolidated fiscal year
fiscal year

(As of October 31, 2016) (As of October 31,2017)
Millions of yen Millions of yen U.-Sr.h::ﬁ:;d(?\l?)ie)
Assets
Current assets
Cash and deposits ¥ 33,209 ¥ 35,220 $ 311,245
Notes and accounts receivable - trade 36,502 37,057 327,479
Electronically recorded monetary claims - operating 3,718 4,069 35,962
Securities 200 200 1,767
Merchandise and finished goods 693 583 5,159
Raw materials and supplies 379 288 2,552
Construction machine parts 10,265 12,193 107,750
Deferred tax assets 604 706 6,240
Other 1,059 1,237 10,937
Allowance for doubtful accounts (689) (784) (6,934)
Total current assets 85,945 90,772 802,161

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Rental equipment 189,549 198,879 1,757,510
Accumulated depreciation (114,596) (125,211) (1,106,500)
Rental equipment, net 74,953 73,668 651,009

Buildings and structures 31,029 32,910 290,827
Accumulated depreciation (18,883) (19,801) (174,984)
Buildings and structures, net 12,145 13,108 115,842

Machinery, equipment and vehicles 6,999 7,290 64,430
Accumulated depreciation (5,963) (6,154) (54,389)
Machinery, equipment and vehicles, net 1,036 1,136 10,041

Land 35,630 35,623 314,807

Other 2,343 2,170 19,180
Accumulated depreciation (1,332) (1,421) (12,558)
Other, net 1,011 749 6,621

Total property, plant and equipment 124,776 124,286 1,098,322

Intangible assets

Goodwill 628 486 4,296

Other 664 1,110 9,812

Total intangible assets 1,292 1,596 14,108

Investments and other assets

Investment securities 6,911 8,417 74,388

Deferred tax assets 419 436 3,859

Other 2,216 2,308 20,396

Allowance for doubtful accounts (406) (272) (2,410)

Allowance for investment loss (320) (0) (0)

Total investments and other assets 8,821 10,889 96,233

Total non-current assets 134,891 136,772 1,208,664
Total assets ¥220,836 ¥ 227,545 $2,010,825
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Prior consolidated
fiscal year
(As of October 31,2016)

Current consolidated fiscal year
(As of October 31, 2017)

Thousands of U.S.

Millions of yen Millions of yen dollars (Note)

Liabilities

Current liabilities

Notes and accounts payable - trade ¥ 26,986 ¥ 28,773 $ 254,276
Short-term loans payable 1,194 994 8,784
Current portion of bonds 40 - -
Current portion of long-term loans payable 13,951 12,029 106,301
Lease obligations 1,357 1,048 9,263
Income taxes payable 2,052 3,247 28,694
Provision for bonuses 1,091 1,099 9,720
Accounts payable - other 21,079 21,269 187,956
Other 2,399 3,060 27,044
Total current liabilities 70,152 71,521 632,042

Non-current liabilities

Long-term loans payable 26,644 23,846 210,733
Lease obligations 2,700 2,017 17,832
Long-term accounts payable - other 38,870 37,127 328,098
Provision for directors’ retirement benefits 94 106 937
Net defined benefit liability 234 259 2,295
Asset retirement obligations 384 431 3,810
Other 321 444 3,932
Total non-current liabilities 69,249 64,234 567,640
Total liabilities 139,402 135,756 1,199,683
Net assets

Shareholders’ equity

Capital stock 13,652 13,652 120,651
Capital surplus 14,916 14,916 131,822
Retained earnings 48,017 57,172 505,233
Treasury shares (2,129) (2,129) (18,820)
Total shareholders’ equity 74,458 83,612 738,887
Accumulated other comprehensive income
Valuation difference on available-for-sale securities 2,051 2,538 22,429
Deferred gains or losses on hedges = 0 0
Foreign currency translation adjustment 164 85 758
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans 8 5 45
Total accumulated other comprehensive income 2,225 2,629 23,234
Non-controlling interests 4,750 5,547 49,021
Total net assets 81,434 91,788 811,142
Total liabilities and net assets ¥220,836 ¥ 227,545 $2,010,825

Note: U.S. dollar amounts have been translated from yen for convenience only, at the rate ¥113.16=US$1, the approximate exchange rate on October 31, 2017.
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Consolidated Financial Statements

Consolidated Statements of Income

Prior consolidated
fiscal year Current consolidated fiscal year
(From November 1,2015 (From November 1,2016 to October 31,2017)
to October 31,2016)

Thousands of U.S.

Millions of yen Millions of yen dollars (Note)
Net sales ¥ 144,870 ¥ 158,428 $ 1,400,038
Cost of sales 101,313 109,863 970,864
Gross profit 43,556 48,565 429,174
Selling, general and administrative expenses 28,422 31,899 281,896
Operating profit 15,134 16,665 147,277
Non-operating income
Interestincome 6 4 41
Dividend income 140 148 1,316
Rentincome 71 73 648
Foreign exchange gains — 253 2,244
Reversal of allowance for doubtful accounts 47 31 277
Other 263 424 3,749
Total non-operating income 528 936 8,278
Non-operating expenses
Interest expenses 267 199 1,766
Foreign exchange losses 493 - -
Provision of allowance for investment loss 278 - -
Other 218 209 1,851
Total non-operating expenses 1,257 409 3,617
Ordinary profit 14,405 17,193 151,938
Extraordinary income
Gain on sales of non-current assets 35 21 189
Gain on donation of non-current assets = 13 123
Subsidy income 6 9 87
Gain on sales of investment securities 2 220 1,948
Gain on step acquisitions 14 - -
Total extraordinary income 59 265 2,348
Extraordinary losses
Loss on sales and retirement of non-current assets 164 140 1,245
Impairment loss 254 157 1,391
Loss on valuation of investment securities 54 - -
Loss on sales of investment securities 4 - -
Loss on valuation of shares of subsidiaries and associates 141 140 1,240
Loss on sales of shares of subsidiaries and associates = 79 703
Total extraordinary losses 620 518 4,580
Profit before income taxes 13,844 16,940 150,952
Income taxes - current 5,215 5,594 49,436
Income taxes - deferred 36 (204) (1,809)
Total income taxes 5,252 5,389 47,626
Profit 8,591 11,551 103,325
Profit attributable to non-controlling interests 493 806 7127
Profit attributable to owners of parent ¥ 8,098 ¥ 10,744 $ 96,198

Note: U.S. dollar amounts have been translated from yen for convenience only, at the rate ¥113.16=US$1, the approximate exchange rate on October 31, 2017.
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Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

Prior consolidated
fiscal year Current consolidated fiscal year
(From November 1,2015 (From November 1,2016 to October 31,2017)
to October 31,2016)

Thousands of U.S.

Millions of yen Millions of yen dollars (Note)

Profit ¥ 8,591 ¥ 11,551 $102,080
Other comprehensive income

Valuation difference on available-for-sale securities 93 498 4,407

Deferred gains or losses on hedges 0 0 0

Foreign currency translation adjustment 121 (79) (698)

Remeasurements of defined benefit plans, net of tax " (4) (40)

Total other comprehensive income 226 415 3,668
Comprehensive income 8,818 11,966 105,748
Comprehensive income attributable to

Comprehensive income attributable to owners of parent 8,323 11,147 98,514

Comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling interests ¥ 495 ¥ 818 $ 7234

Note: U.S. dollar amounts have been translated from yen for convenience only, at the rate ¥113.16=US$1, the approximate exchange rate on October 31, 2017.

Consolidated Statements of Changes in EQUity (From November 1, 2015 to October 31, 2017)

Shareholders’ equity Accumulated other comprehensive income
. . Total Non-
) ) ) Total Valuation  Deferred  Foreign g0 onents sccumulated controlling  1otal net
Capital Capital ~ Retained  Treasury , differenceon  gainsor  currency ; 9 assets
. shareholders' - N of defined other interests
stock surplus  earnings shares . available-for- losses on  translation }
equity - " benefitplans  comprehensive
sale securities  hedges  adjustment b
income
Millions of yen
Balance at beginning of current period ¥13,652 ¥14916 ¥41,156 ¥(2,128) ¥67,597 ¥1,948 ¥(0) ¥ 43 M= ¥1,991 ¥2,409 ¥71,998
Changes of items during period
Dividends of surplus (1,236) (1,236) = (1,236)
Profit attributable to owners of parent 8,098 8,098 = 8,098
Purchase of treasury shares 0 ) - (0)
Net changes of items other than _
shareholders’ equity 103 0 121 8 233 2,341 2,574
Total changes of items during period = = 6,861 (0) 6,861 103 0 121 8 233 2341 9,435
Balance at beginning of current period ¥13,652  ¥14916  ¥48,017  ¥(2,129) ¥74,458 ¥2,051 ¥— ¥164 ¥8 ¥2,225 ¥4,750 ¥81,434
Changes of items during period
Dividends of surplus (1,590) (1,590) - (1,590)
Profit attributable to owners of parent 10,744 10,744 - 10,744
Purchase of treasury shares (0) (0) = (0)
Net changes of items other than _
shareholders’ equity 486 0 (79 ®3) 404 796 1,200
Total changes of items during period = = 9,154 (0) 9,154 486 0 (79) (3) 404 796 10,354
Balance at end of current period ¥13,652 ¥14,916 ¥57,172 ¥(2,129) ¥83,612 ¥2,538 ¥0 ¥85 ¥5 ¥2,629 ¥5,547 ¥91,788
Shareholders' equity Accumulated other comprehensive income
Valuaton ~ Deferred  Foreign o]
. . . Total . . Remeasurements  accumulated Non-
Capital Capital Retained  Treasury , differenceon  gainsor  currency K Total net
. shareholders’ - N of defined other controlling
stock surplus  earnings shares ; available-for- losseson  translation Lo assets
equity - " benefitplans ~ comprehensive  interests
sale securities  hedges  adjustment b
income
Thousands of U.S. dollars (Note)
Balance at beginning of current period $120,651 $131,822 $424,334 $(18815) $657,992 $18,128 S= $1,457 $76 $19,663 $41,982 $719,638
Changes of items during period
Dividends of surplus (14,053) (14,053) - (14,053)
Profit attributable to owners of parent 94,952 94,952 = 94,952
Purchase of treasury shares (4) (4) = (4)
Net changes of items other than
shareholders’ equity 4,300 0 (698) 31 3,571 7,038 10,609
Total changes of items during period = = 80,899 4) 80,895 4,300 0 (698) (31) 3,571 7,038 91,504
Balance at end of current period $120,651 $131,822 $505233 $(18,820) $738,887  $22,429 $0 $758 $45 $23,234 $49,021 $811,142

Note: U.S. dollar amounts have been translated from yen for convenience only, at the rate ¥113.16=US$1, the approximate exchange rate on October 31, 2017.
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Consolidated Financial Statements

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Prior consolidated
fiscal year Current consolidated fiscal year
(From November 1,2015 (From November 1,2016 to October 31,2017)
to October 31,2016)

Millions of yen Millions of yen Th;;i:;d&ﬁ;'s'
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before income taxes ¥ 13,844 ¥16,940 $ 149,706
Depreciation 22,097 24,428 215,875
Impairment loss 254 157 1,391
Amortization of goodwill 83 142 1,258
Loss (gain) on sales and retirement of non-current assets 128 119 1,056
Amount of cost price transfer with asset sell-off for rentals 840 994 8,784
Expenditure by the construction equipment and supplies (492) (1,073) (9,484)
Expenditure by the assets acquisition for rentals (3,034) (2,731) (24,141)
Loss (gain) on valuation of investment securities 54 - -
Loss (gain) on sales of investment securities 2 (220) (1,948)
Loss on valuation of shares of subsidiaries and associates 141 140 1,240
Loss (gain) on sales of shares of subsidiaries and associates = 79 703
Increase (decrease) in allowance for doubtful accounts (61) (113) (1,001)
Increase (decrease) in allowance for investment loss 278 - -
Increase (decrease) in provision for bonuses 141 8 71
Increase (decrease) in net defined benefit liability (14) 21 185
Interest and dividend income (146) (153) (1,358)
Assets buy on the installment plan purchase payment interest for rentals 371 349 3,088
Interest expenses 267 199 1,766
Foreign exchange losses (gains) 292 (199) (1,766)
Decrease (increase) in notes and accounts receivable - trade 390 (808) (7,148)
Decrease (increase) in inventories (107) 236 2,091
Increase (decrease) in notes and accounts payable - trade (1,654) 1,915 16,929
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable - other 1,298 1,276 11,277
Other, net (877) 884 7,818
Subtotal 34,096 42,593 376,396
Interest and dividend income received 146 153 1,355
Interest expenses paid (653) (553) (4,892)
Income taxes paid (6,970) (4,404) (38,922)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities ¥26,618 ¥37,788 $333,937

58 Kanamoto 2018



Prior consolidated
fiscal year Current consolidated fiscal year
(From November 1,2015 (From November 1,2016 to October 31,2017)
to October 31,2016)

Millions of yen Millions of yen Th:;i:;d&ﬁ;'s'
Cash flows from investing activities
Payments into time deposits ¥ (0) ¥ (560) S (4,948)
Proceeds from withdrawal of time deposits = 640 5,656
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (2,729) (2,731) (24,140)
Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment 38 31 277
Purchase of intangible assets (366) (461) (4,077)
Purchase of investment securities (22) (583) (5,159)
Proceeds from sales of investment securities 48 450 3,982
Purchase of shares of subsidiaries — (917) (8,105)
Proceeds from sales of shares of subsidiaries — 76 679
Purchase of shares of subsidiaries resulting in change in scope of consolidation (5,806) - -
Purchase of shares of subsidiaries and associates - (100) (883)
Payments of loans receivable (37) (742) (6,562)
Collection of loans receivable 25 28 250
Other, net (90) 122 1,082
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (8,940) (4,747) (41,949)
Cash flows from financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in short-term loans payable (894) (212) (1,875)
Redemption of bonds (50) (40) (353)
Proceeds from long-term loans payable 19,960 10,900 96,323
Repayments of long-term loans payable (14,637) (15,667) (138,451)
Repayments of installment payables (21,304) (22,582) (199,559)
Repayments of lease obligations (1,967) (1,744) (15,419)
Purchase of treasury shares (0) (0) (4)
Purchase of treasury shares of subsidiaries (0) (0) M
Cash dividends paid (1,235) (1,591) (14,061)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests Q) (22) (198)
Paymgnts from ghanges in owners.hip.interests in subsidiaries that do not (594) _ _
result in change in scope of consolidation
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (20,726) (30,960) (273,601)
Effect of exchange rate change on cash and cash equivalents (33) 10 93
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (3,080) 2,091 18,479
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 36,150 33,069 292,235
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period ¥ 33,069 ¥35,160 $310,714

Note: U.S. dollar amounts have been translated from yen for convenience only, at the rate ¥113.16=US$1, the approximate exchange rate on October 31, 2017.
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Non-Consolidated Financial Statements

Balance Sheets

Prior fiscal year Current fiscal year
(As of October 31,2016) (As of October 31, 2017)

Thousands of U.S.

Millions of yen Millions of yen dollars (Note)
Assets
Current assets
Cash and deposits ¥ 25489 ¥ 27,335 $ 241,565
Notes receivable - trade 5,630 6,073 53,668
Electronically recorded monetary claims - operating 3,658 3,605 31,864
Accounts receivable - trade 18,238 18,139 160,298
Securities 200 200 1,767
Merchandise and finished goods 259 244 2,162
Costs on uncompleted construction contracts 61 25 229
Construction machine parts 9,058 10,081 89,094
Raw materials and supplies 267 149 1,318
Prepaid expenses 303 313 2,771
Deferred tax assets 334 361 3,192
Short-term loans receivable 50 398 3,522
Other 403 210 1,858
Allowance for doubtful accounts (69) (54) (477)
Total current assets 63,885 67,085 592,837
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Rental equipment 53,451 51,644 456,384
Buildings 7,603 8,202 72,484
Structures 1,926 2,004 17,713
Machinery and equipment 736 792 7,007
Vehicles 12 9 85
Tools, furniture and fixtures 254 240 2,125
Land 31,925 31,919 282,070
Construction in progress 438 288 2,545
Total property, plant and equipment 96,348 95,101 840,417
Intangible assets
Software 88 91 804
Telephone subscription right 52 52 459
Software in progress 302 655 5,794
Other 0 19 169
Total intangible assets 444 817 7,228
Investments and other assets
Investment securities 5,557 6,543 57,825
Shares of subsidiaries and associates 11,309 11,753 103,865
Investments in capital 12 10 89
Long-term loans receivable from subsidiaries and associates 2,249 3,803 33,607
Claims provable in bankruptcy, claims provable in rehabilitation and other 20 66 591
Long-term prepaid expenses 29 47 420
Insurance funds 38 45 399
Guarantee deposits 908 905 8,001
Other 44 57 505
Allowance for doubtful accounts (1,491) (1,896) (16,762)
Allowance for investment loss (560) (0) (0)
Total investments and other assets 18,118 21,335 188,544
Total non-current assets 114,911 117,255 1,036,189
Total assets ¥ 178,796 ¥ 184,340 $1,629,027
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Prior fiscal year
(As of October 31,2016)

Current fiscal year
(As of October 31, 2017)

Thousands of U.S.

Millions of yen

Millions of yen

dollars (Note)

Liabilities
Current liabilities
Notes payable - trade ¥ 16,190 ¥ 17,028 $ 150,485
Accounts payable - trade 4,750 5,010 44,276
Short-term loans payable 11,079 10,116 89,395
Accounts payable - other 16,932 16,978 150,039
Accrued expenses 388 473 4,185
Income taxes payable 1,442 2,215 19,582
Accrued consumption taxes 137 718 6,345
Provision for bonuses 614 631 5,583
Notes payable - facilities 480 617 5,458
Other 303 311 2,749
Total current liabilities 52,320 54,101 478,100
Non-current liabilities
Long-term loans payable 21,452 20,546 181,565
Long-term accounts payable - other 32,797 29,953 264,701
Deferred tax liabilities 296 416 3,678
Asset retirement obligations 259 274 2,422
Other 4 - -
Total non-current liabilities 54,810 51,190 452,368
Total liabilities 107,130 105,291 930,469
Net assets
Shareholders’ equity
Capital stock 13,652 13,652 120,651
Capital surplus
Legal capital surplus 14,773 14,773 130,555
Other capital surplus 143 143 1,266
Total capital surpluses 14,916 14,916 131,822
Retained earnings
Legal retained earnings 1,375 1,375 12,153
Other retained earnings
Reserve for advanced depreciation of non-current assets 22 22 202
General reserve 33,731 39,731 351,110
Retained earnings brought forward 8,082 9,046 79,940
Total retained earnings 43,212 50,175 443,407
Treasury shares (2,129) (2,129) (18,820)
Total shareholders’ equity 69,653 76,616 677,060
Valuation and translation adjustments
Valuation difference on available-for-sale securities 2,012 2,432 21,497
Total valuation and translation adjustments 2,012 2,432 21,497
Total net assets 71,665 79,048 698,558
Total liabilities and net assets ¥ 178,796 ¥ 184,340 $1,629,027

Note: U.S. dollar amounts have been translated from yen for convenience only, at the rate ¥113.16=US$1, the approximate exchange rate on October 31, 2017.
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Non-Consolidated Financial Statements

Statements of Income
(Fr(ljr:?\lg\tiesrizleryﬁ 3261 5 Current Fiscal Year
to October 31, 2016) (From November 1, 2016 to October 31,2017)
Millions of yen Millions of yen Th;(:lli:rnsd(i\lzftg).s'
Net sales ¥ 103,777 ¥107,277 $948,013
Cost of sales 73,575 75,778 669,658
Gross profit 30,201 31,498 278,355
Selling, general and administrative expenses 18,337 19,535 172,635
Operating profit 11,864 11,963 105,719
Non-operating income
Interest and dividend income 148 217 1,926
Rentincome 293 285 2,523
Temporary transfer charges income 202 220 1,952
Reversal of allowance for doubtful accounts 205 84 745
Reversal of allowance for investment loss = 239 2,120
Other 137 179 1,589
Total non-operating income 986 1,228 10,858
Non-operating expenses
Interest expenses 127 84 745
Provision of allowance for doubtful accounts 23 454 4,015
Provision of allowance for investment loss 278 - -
Foreign exchange losses 139 - -
Other 149 131 1,163
Total non-operating expenses 718 670 5,924
Ordinary profit 12,132 12,521 110,654
Extraordinary income
Gain on sales of non-current assets 10 10 92
Subsidy income 2 5 47
Gain on sales of investment securities 2 220 1,948
Total extraordinary income 15 236 2,088
Extraordinary losses
Loss on sales and retirement of non-current assets 64 95 847
Loss on valuation of investment securities 54 - -
Loss on sales of shares of subsidiaries and associates = 79 703
Loss on valuation of shares of subsidiaries and associates 1,014 140 1,240
Total extraordinary losses 1,133 315 2,790
Profit before income taxes 11,014 12,442 109,951
Income taxes - current 4,065 3,979 35,164
Income taxes - deferred 108 (90) (802)
Total income taxes 4174 3,888 34,362
Profit ¥ 6,840 ¥ 8,553 $ 75,589

Note: U.S. dollar amounts have been translated from yen for convenience only, at the rate ¥113.16=US$1, the approximate exchange rate on October 31, 2017.
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Statements of Changes in Equity (From November 1,2015 to October 31,2017)

Shareholders’ equity

Capital surplus

Retained earnings

Legal

Other retained earnings

Reserve for

Total retained

Capital stock  Legal capital Other capital Total capital - Retained
non-current assets
Millions of yen
Balance at beginning of current period ¥ 13,652 ¥ 14,773 ¥143 ¥14916 ¥ 1,375 ¥22 ¥ 26,731 ¥9,479 ¥ 37,609
Changes of items during period
Provision of general reserve = 7,000 (7,000) =
Dividends of surplus = (1,236) (1,236)
Profit = 6,840 6,840
Purchase of treasury shares = =
Adjustment to reserve due to change in tax rate = 0 0) =
Net changes of items other than shareholders’ equity
Total changes of items during period — — — — = 0 7,000 (1,397) 5,603
Balance at beginning of current period ¥13,652 ¥14,773 ¥143 ¥14,916 ¥1,375 ¥22 ¥33,731 ¥ 8,082 ¥43,212
Changes of items during period
Provision of general reserve = 6,000 (6,000) =
Dividends of surplus — (1,590) (1,590)
Profit = 8,553 8,553
Purchase of treasury shares = =
Adjustment to reserve due to change in tax rate = =
Net changes of items other than shareholders’ equity
Total changes of items during period = = = = = = 6,000 963 6,963
Balance at end of current period ¥ 13,652 ¥14,773 ¥143 ¥14,916 ¥1,375 ¥22 ¥39,731 ¥9,046 ¥50,175
Shareholders' equity Valuation and translation adjustments
Treasury Total Valuationdifference Total valuation Total net
shareholders’ onavailablefor-sale - and translation assets
shares equity securities adjustments
Millions of yen
Balance at beginning of current period ¥(2,128) ¥ 64,050 ¥1,897 ¥1,897 ¥ 65,948
Changes of items during period
Provision of general reserve = = =
Dividends of surplus (1,236) = (1,236)
Profit 6,840 = 6,840
Purchase of treasury shares (0) (0) — (0)
Adjustment to reserve due to change in tax rate = = =
Net changes of items other than shareholders’ equity 114 114 114
Total ch of items during period (0) 5,602 114 114 5716
Balance at beginning of current period ¥(2,129) ¥69,653 ¥2,012 ¥2,012 ¥71,665
Changes of items during period
Provision of general reserve = = =
Dividends of surplus (1,590) = (1,590)
Profit 8,553 = 8,553
Purchase of treasury shares 0) (0) = 0)
Adjustment to reserve due to change in tax rate = = =
Net changes of items other than shareholders’ equity 420 420 420
Total changes of items during period (0) 6,962 420 420 7,383
Balance at end of current period ¥(2,129) ¥76,616 ¥2,432 ¥2,432 ¥79,048

Shareholders’ equity

Capital surplus

Retained earnings

Other retained earnings

Capital stock Legal capital Other capital Total capital reli?na; 4 PReseneforadenced  General Retained  Total retained
surplus surplus surplus . depreciation of earnings brought ~ earnings
€arnings — non-currentassets  '€Serve forward
Thousands of U.S. dollars (Note)
Balance at beginning of current period $120,651 $130,555 $1,266 $131,822 $12,153 $202 $ 298,088 $71,426 $381,871
Changes of items during period
Provision of general reserve = 53,022 (53,022) =
Dividends of surplus — (14,053) (14,053)
Profit = 75,589 75,589
Purchase of treasury shares = =
Adjustment to reserve due to change in tax rate - -
Net changes of items other than shareholders’ equity
Total changes of items during period = = = = = = 53,022 8,513 61,536
Balance at end of current period $120,651 $ 130,555 $1,266 $131,822 $12,153 $202 $351,110 $79,940 $ 443,407
Shareholders' equity  Valuation and translation adjustments
Treasury Total Valuationdifference Total valuation Total net
shareholders’ onavailable-for-sale - and translation assets
shares equity securities adjustments
Thousands of U.S. dollars (Note)
Balance at beginning of current period $(18,815) $615,529 $17,781 $17,781 $633,310
Changes of items during period
Provision of general reserve = = =
Dividends of surplus (14,053) - (14,053)
Profit 75,589 = 75,589
Purchase of treasury shares (4) (4) = (4)
Adjustment to reserve due to change in tax rate = = =
Net changes of items other than shareholders’ equity 3,715 3,715 3,715
Total changes of items during period (4) 61,531 BWIS! 3,715 65,247
Balance at end of current period $(18,820) $677,060 $ 21,497 $ 21,497 $ 698,558

Note: U.S. dollar amounts have been translated from yen for convenience only, at the rate ¥113.16=US$1, the approximate exchange rate on October 31, 2017.
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Audit Reports

Accounting Audit Report on Consolidated Financial Statements

Report of Independent Accounting Auditor

Kanamoto Co.,, Ltd. December 18,2017
To: The Board of Directors

Ernst & Young ShinNihon LLC

Designated Limited Liability Partner
Managing Partner

Certified Public Accountant Shigenobu Omori

Designated Limited Liability Partner
Managing Partner
Certified Public Accountant Kiyohiro Saito

Pursuant to Article 444, paragraph 4 of the Companies Act, we have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements, which comprise the con-
solidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of income, the consolidated statement of changes in net assets and the notes to consolidated financial
statements of Kanamoto Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) applicable to the 53rd Business Period from November 1, 2016 through October 31, 2017.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in Japan, and for designing and operating such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation and
fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with audit-
ing standards generally accepted in Japan. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatements.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The proce-
dures selected and applied depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position and results of
operations of the corporate group which consisted of the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries, applicable to the 53rd Business Period ended October
31,2017 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan.

Conflicts of interest
There are no interests between the Company and Ernst & Young ShinNihon LLC or its Partners that should be disclosed pursuant to the provisions of the
Certified Public Accountants Act.

The audit reports concerning the Company’s financial position (financial statements in Japanese for the 12 months ended October 31, 2017) are prepared by
Ernst & Young ShinNihon LLC.
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‘ Audit Reports

Accounting Audit Report on Financial Statements

Report of Independent Accounting Auditor

Kanamoto Co.,, Ltd. December 18,2017
To: The Board of Directors

Ernst & Young ShinNihon LLC

Designated Limited Liability Partner
Managing Partner

Certified Public Accountant Shigenobu Omori

Designated Limited Liability Partner
Managing Partner
Certified Public Accountant Kiyohiro Saito

Pursuant to Article 436, paragraph 2 (i) of the Companies Act, we have audited the financial statements, which comprise the Balance Sheet, Statement of
Income, Statement of Changes in Net Assets and the notes to financial statements and the related supplementary schedules, of Kanamoto Company, Ltd.
(the “Company”) for the 53rd Business Period from November 1, 2016 through October 31, 2017.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements and the Related Supplementary Schedules

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements and the related supplementary schedules in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan, and for designing and operating such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements and the related supplementary schedules that are free from material misstatements,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements and the related supplementary schedules based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assur-
ance about whether the financial statements and the related supplementary schedules are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements and the related supplemen-
tary schedules. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements and the related supplementary schedules, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements and the related supplementary schedules in order to design audit proce-
dures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements and the related supplementary schedules.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements and the related supplementary schedules referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
and results of operations of the Company applicable to the 53rd Business Period ended October 31,2017 in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in Japan.

Conflicts of interest
There are no interests between the Company and Ernst & Young ShinNihon LLC or its Partners that should be disclosed pursuant to the provisions of the
Certified Public Accountants Act.

The audit reports concerning the Company’s financial position (financial statements in Japanese for the 12 months ended October 31, 2017) are prepared by
Ernst & Young ShinNihon LLC.
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Audit Reports

Report of the Audit Committee

Audit Reports

Audit Report

The Board of Corporate Auditors has received the audit reports prepared by each of the Corporate Auditors concerning the business
performance of the Directors during the 53rd Business Period from November 1, 2016 through October 31, 2017. After discussing the
audit results based on the reports, we have prepared this Audit Report and report as follows as the consensus of opinion of the Board of
Corporate Auditors.

1. Procedures and details of the audits by the Corporate Auditors and the Board of Corporate Auditors

(1) The Board of Corporate Auditors establishes the audit policies, audit plans and other matters, and receives reports concerning the
implementation of audits and the audit result from each of the Corporate Auditors as well as reports from the Directors and the Ac-
counting Auditor concerning the execution of their duties, and requests explanations as necessary.

(2) In addition to communicating with the Directors, the internal audit division, employees and other individuals in accordance with the
standards for Corporate Auditors and audits provided by the Board of Corporate Auditors and in compliance with the audit policy
and audit plan, and gathering information and striving to improve the audit environment, each Corporate Auditor performed audits
according to the following procedures:

(i) Each Corporate Auditor attended the Board of Directors meetings and other important meetings, received reports from Directors,

employees and other individuals on their execution of duties and requested explanations from the Directors, other employees
and other individuals when necessary as well as reviewed documents concerning matters such as important decisions and con-
ducted inspections of the business and financial condition at the Company’s Head Office and main branches. With respect to
subsidiaries, each Corporate Auditor communicated and exchanged information with the Directors and Corporate Auditors of
such subsidiaries and received business reports therefrom as necessary.
Each Corporate Auditor regularly received reports from the Company’s Directors and employees, and requested explanations and
clarified opinions when necessary, regarding the contents of Board of Director resolutions concerning the establishment of the
organization provided in Article 100 paragraph (1) and paragraph (3) of the Ordinance for Enforcement of the Companies Act, and
the status of operation of the organization (internal controls system) that has been established based on said resolutions, as the
organization necessary to ensure that the Directors comply with laws and the Company’s Articles of Incorporation in the execu-
tion of their duties as described in the Report of Business Operations and to ensure the appropriateness of other operations of the
corporate group, which consists of a stock company and the subsidiaries thereof.

(iii) Each Corporate Auditor monitored and verified whether or not the Accounting Auditor performed audits properly while main-
taining an independent position as well as received reports from the Accounting Auditor on the execution of duties thereby and
requested explanations when necessary. Each Corporate Auditor was also notified by the Accounting Auditor that the System for
Securing the Proper Performance of Duties (matters listed in the items of Article 131 of the Ordinance on Company Accounting)
was developed in accordance with the Standards for Quality Control of Audits (Business Accounting Council, October 28, 2005),
and requested explanations as necessary.

Based on the above procedures, the Board of Corporate Auditors reviewed the Report of Business Operations and the supporting sched-

ules, the Financial Statements (Balance Sheet, Statement of Income, Statement of Changes in Net Assets and Notes to the Financial

Statements) and the supporting schedules and the Consolidated Financial Statements (Consolidated Balance Sheet, Consolidated State-

ment of Income, Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Assets and Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements) for the business

period.

(ii

2. Result of audit
(1) Audit result of the Report of Business Operations, etc.

(i) The Report of Business Operations and its supporting schedules fairly represent the condition of the Company in accordance with
the laws of Japan and the Atrticles of Incorporation of the Company.

(ii) We have determined that there was no serious occurrence of improper activity or violation of laws or the Company’s Articles of
Incorporation by any of the Directors in carrying out the duties and responsibilities of their office.

(i) In our opinion, the details of the Board of Directors resolutions concerning the internal controls system are appropriate. We also
have determined that there are no matters that should be highlighted as a concern with regard to the information contained in
the Report of Business Operations and the Directors in carrying out their duties concerning the internal controls system.

(2) Financial statement and audit result of the supporting schedules

In our opinion, the audit procedures and audit results received from the Accounting Auditor Ernst & Young ShinNihon LLC are ap-

propriate.

(3) Audit result of consolidated financial statements

In our opinion, the audit procedures and audit results received from the Accounting Auditor Ernst & Young ShinNihon LLC are ap-

propriate.

December 26,2017
Kanamoto Co., Ltd.
The Board of Corporate Auditors
Standing Corporate Auditor  Eichu Kanamoto
Standing Corporate Auditor  Naoyuki Yokota
Outside Corporate Auditor ~ Akio Hashimoto
Outside Corporate Auditor  Kiyohiro Tsuji
Outside Corporate Auditor ~ Akira Naoi
Outside Corporate Auditor ~ Koji Soga
The audit reports concerning the Company’s financial position (financial statements in Japanese for the 12 months ended October 31, 2017) are prepared by the
Audit Committee of Kanamoto Co,, Ltd.
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Performance at a Glance

ot EICRE T3 LM
Profit Attributable to Owners of Parent

Total Assets

1HRL fcY) SEAFIZS (EPS)

Net Income per Share of Common Stock

‘BAM/Millions of Yen ‘BAM/Millions of Yen F/Yen
20,000 300,000 320
15,000 225,000 — 240 — —
10,000 — 150000 — —r —r —r — — 160 — —— —— ——
500— — — — — — 75000— —4 —— — — — 80— — — —.—
0 0 0
"13 14 "15 16 17 13 14 "15 16 17 13 "14 "15 "16 17
RN SR HREME SR i
PER PBR Net Assets
- BC&EXRLE
Capital Adequacy Ratio
f&/Times 1&/Times B /Millions of Yen %
20 4 100,000 ./.—/—'—’*/. 40
P — 3 75,000 30
10 N 2 ./ \\/ 50000 — —— — — — X
5 1 25000 — —— — — —10
0 0 0 0
13 14 15 16 17 13 "4 15 16 17 13 "14 15 16 17
w3, - Cash Flow
Fvya70 PCER

Wil ya7n—{gE
CF= L ERHEFS + R ENE - Y +1REEE)
PCFR=MATBHE#%E + CF=# Ml 14K 72 CF

(AN A E A

EBITDAfEE

EBITDA =2 2672 + iRt il (H AN &

EBITDAfEER = (iR TURHEAEER + B F Bl — BRI R B ER ) +EBITDA

PRAmIN S
PER=HARIARTUBHEEER + S AAEF
PR E

PBR=#k{ffi+BPS (1#k X fc I E )
wEE

BEHALE
BCEALER=ACEREE
BEEFFIE

ROE= LifAifl - HO&EA
=1HRE Y ZHEBRER2E (EPS) -+ 1R e W HIE EE (BPS)

BEEASE
ROA= 2 EiFI28 + FRE B
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and auditors)
PCFR = Total market capitalization <+ CF = Stock Price <+ Cash flow per share of
common stock

EBITDA

EBITDA Ratio

EBITDA = Operating income + depreciation and amortization expense

EBITDA ratio = (Total market capitalization at end of business period + interest-
bearing debt - market value of non-trade assets at end of business
period) -+ EBITDA

PER
PER = Total market capitalization at end of period + Net Income
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Net Assets
Capital Adequacy Ratio
Capital Adequacy Ratio = Shareholders’ equity + Total assets

ROE
ROE = Net income - Shareholders’ equity = EPS = BPS

ROA
ROA = Net income = Total assets
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Operating Profit
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Performance at a Glance

Ep-GEpEs] wEE
Net Income Total Assets

1HRL fcY) SEAFIZS (EPS)

Net Income per Share of Common Stock

B /3F/Millions of Yen B /3F/Millions of Yen F/Yen
20,000 200,000 320
15,000 150000 —m@M8@  —— —— —1 — 240 —
10,000 100,000 — —— 60— — — — —
5000 —pi— —o1 —1 —1 — 50,000 — —— 80— — — —F — —
0 0 0
13 14 "5 6 "7 13 14 "5 "6 17 13 14 "5 16 17
HRIBIR R e AT = S EE
PER PBR Net Assets
—BoEALE
Capital Adequacy Ratio
f&/Times 1&/Times BAM/Millions of Yen %
24 4 80,000 60
18 .\ 3 60,000 .j;; —45
12 /(/) AN 40000— —1 —F —§ — %
6 1 20000— —+1f —r —+ — —15
0 0 0 0
13 14 "5 16 "7 13 14 "5 16 17 13 14 "5 16 17
ws, - Cash Flow
Fvrvazno e

HiliFryao—fEf
CF= YA & HRMEDE -GN +REES)
PCFR=HkTBHAFA%E + CF=HkME+ 1R 72V CF

EEAl T k=

EBITDA{EE

EBITDA = E3&H28 + it i fE AN &

EBITDAfE R = (HARM I Mife%E + B F Fa M — BRI E £ & ERE) ~EBITDA

EBITDA*

EBITDAH{ZE

EBITDA* =EBITDA+ RI#IRERZ

EBITDAHEER = (HIARIR S EMAEE + G F FaE — HiRIEE 2 &R M) —EBITDAT

PRI e

PER= AR IR TR AR — Ak
PR

PBR=7&fffi+BPS (1#k X4 fc UL EE)
wEE

BCEALE
BCEALER=ACELEE
BEEFFliEE

ROE= Lififiiflat - HO&EA
=1HRE 7Y ZEBRIR 2 (EPS) -+ 1R e HIEEE (BPS)

BEEfRE
ROA= 2 EiFI)as + FEE B

CF = Net income + Depreciation expense - (Cash dividends + Bonuses to directors
and auditors)
PCFR = Total market capitalization -+ CF = Stock Price =+ Cash flow per share of common stock

EBITDA

EBITDA Ratio

EBITDA = Operating income + depreciation and amortization expense

EBITDA ratio = (Total market capitalization at end of business period + interest-
bearing debt - market value of non-trade assets at end of business
period) -+ EBITDA

EBITDA*

EBITDA Ratio

EBITDAT = Operating income + Depreciation expense + Other depreciation and
amortization expense + Low-price rental assets, and others

EBITDAT is an indicator used only for the construction equipment rental business

and excludes steel products and information products

PER
PER = Total market capitalization at end of period ~+ Net Income

PBR
PBR = Share price =+ BPS (Net assets per share)

Net Assets
Capital Adequacy Ratio
Capital Adequacy Ratio = Shareholders’ equity <+ Total assets

ROE
ROE = Net income - Shareholders’ equity = EPS = BPS

ROA
ROA = Net income = Total assets
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Listing Exchanges
Tokyo Stock Exchange, First Section; Sapporo Securities Exchange

Stock Code
9678

Common Shares Issued and Outstanding
36,092 thousand

Fiscal year
From November 1 to October 31

Regular General Meeting of the Shareholders
During January

Date of record with respect to voting rights at a Regular
General Meeting
October 31

Date of record for distribution of interim dividends
April 30

Date of record for distribution of year-end dividends
October 31

Method of public notice
Kanamoto's website, Nihon Keizai Shinbunx

*Public notices of Kanamoto Co., Ltd. will be released on Kanamoto's website
(http://www.kanamoto.cojp and https://www.kanamoto.ne,jp).
When the Company cannot make electronic notification because of unavoidable rea-
sons, the public notices of the Company will be published in the Nihon Keizai Shinbun.

Transfer agent
Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and Banking Corporation

Administrative Office

Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and Banking Corporation Transfer Agent Division
4-5, Marunouchi 1-chome, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo 100-8212 Japan

Mailing address and telephone number

Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and Banking Corporation Transfer Agent Division
New Tokyo Post Office PO. Box No. 29 137-8081 Japan
TEL:0120-232-711



Stock Information I

HRDIKR (20175108318377E) | Summary of Common Stock (As of October 31, 2017)

FITHEMEXDHER  Number of shares issued
28k  Total number of shareholders

36,092,241

6,742

Bk PRrE & %R %K R | Distribution of shares by shareholder type

BN - 2Dt 81,537 (22.61%)

Individuals and other

NEEAF 86,034 (23.84%)

Foreign corporations, etc.

(87t /Trading units)

SR 110,335 (30.58%)

Financial institutions

SREMAGIEE 10463 ( 2.90%)

Registered financial instruments firms

ZDMDEN 72,386 (20.07%)

GE1) BEtRIN753,2535 D55, 7,53285Tid MEAA - ZOfM IcFHTERHLTEVET,
CE2) 2 DDEN] ISR EIREHBEARDOMAINRETEFNTEIET,

GE3) 1B DL 100K T Y

(Note 1) Of 753,253 treasury stock shares, 7,532 units are included in “Individuals and other.”
(Note 2) “Other corporations” includes 42 units of shares held in the name of the Japan Securities Depository Center, Inc.
(Note 3) The number of shares of one trading unit is 100 shares.

¥{#iF+—I | Share price chart

Other corporations

F3/yen
5,000
4,000
++==+WI[FT Lyt
-I» !¢+ .1;. 1'I+T "
; 0 T‘[ L
J_ﬂ+“
3,000 i e * +IEU

[

mit
]Dl’.1+~r

¢+$$

i
LIS
2,000 ‘ﬁﬂ—lﬂ**[]

1,000

2016418 2016/6/6  2016/7/25  2016/9/12 2016/10/31 2016/1219 2017206 2017327 2017/5/15 201773 2017/8/21 2017710110 2017/11/27 2018/1/15  2018/3/5

Kanamoto 2018 75



VEGETA .
EGE,L ,BNL,E ZOT=aTIVUR=RE NTETNAANAFERNCNET
This annual report is printed with vegetable oil ink.

wton T T

A4t
T060-0041 FLIETHREXKERIT H1&EH#19

EXREAS
T105-0012 REFERXE KN T H7EH7

Ikcanamoto co., ltd.

Head Office
1-19, Odori Higashi 3-chome Chuo-ku, Sapporo,
Hokkaido 060-0041 Japan

Business Coordination Headquarters
1-7-7, Shiba Daimon, Minato-ku, Tokyo 105-0012 Japan

http://www.kanamoto.co.jp




